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ALLEGATIONS BY MEMBER FOR AUCKLAND WEST
COMMITTEE

(REPORT OF, TOGETHER WITH MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS, EVIDENCE, AND APPENDIX.)

(Beport brought up 4th September, 1883, and ordered to be printed.)

ORDERS OF REFERENCE.
Extract from the Journals of the Souse of Representatives.

Friday, Sbd August, 1883.
Ordered,That, the honourable member for Auckland West, Mr. Dargaville, having charged the Premier and the

Colonial Treasurer with using, for years, their political position for the purpose of promoting legislation, not for the
good of the colony, but in the interest of the Bank of New Zealand, especially in assisting to pass "The Public Debts
Act, 1867," and, further, having accused the Premier of receiving the sum of ten thousand pounds, or some portion of
ten thousand pounds, as payment for such service rendered in passing " The Public Debts Act, 1867," a Select
Committee be appointed to inquire and report to the House—(1.) Whether the allegations made against the Premier
and the Colonial Treasurer, contained in the uncorrected report of the speech of Mr. Dargaville, made in this House on
Tuesday, the 31st day of July, 1883, in the discussion on the Property-Tax Bill, imputed any political corruptionor
personal dishonestyor dishonour to either of those honourable gentlemen. (2.) Whether those allegations are true.
The Committeeto consist of Mr. Driver, Mr. Hurst, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Montgomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. E. Brown,
Mr. J. G. Wilson; four to form a quorum; to havepower to call for persons and papers, and toreport within a fort-
night.—(Son. Major Atkinson.)

Feiday, 10th August, 1883.
Ordered,That Mr. Hurst be discharged from the Select Committee appointed to inquire into the charges made by

the honourable member for Auckland West, Mr. Dargaville, against the.Premier and the Colonial Treasurer, and that
Mr. Mason bo substituted.—(Hon. Major Atkinson.)

Tuesday, 14th August, 1883.
Ordered,That the Select Committee appointed to inquire into certain allegations by the member for Auckland

■West have leave to postpone making theirreport for ten days.—(Mr. Mason.)

Tuesday, 23bd August, 1883.
Ordered,That the Committee on certain allegations of the member for Auckland West have an extensionof time

of one week for making their report.—(Mr. Mason.)

Pbiday, 31st August, 1883.
Ordered,That the Committee on certain allegations of the member for Auckland West have leave to postpono

making their report for one week.—(Mr. Mason.)

EBPOET.
The Committee to whom was remitted the matters contained in the above
orders of reference have the honour to report—

That they verified the report of Mr. Dargaville's speech by examining the
Hansard reporters, who read their shorthand notes taken at the time, and found
that the proof report as submitted to the Committee was substantially correct.

The Committee, having considered that report, extracted certain passages,
which will be found in detail in the minutes of evidence, and passed the following
resolution : " That the Committee is of opinion that the speech of Mr. Dargaville
on the 31st July, 1883, does impute political corruption against the Premier and
Treasurer; and that it also imputes personal dishonour to the Treasurer, and is
capable of being interpreted as imputing personal dishonour to the Premier."

Mr. Dargaville was informed of the above resolution, and made the follow-
ing statement: "I did not intend to convey any personal imputation of dis-
honesty against the Premier and Treasurer, and I onlyregret that the Committee
consider the words could bear such an interpretation;", and in his evidence
on the 23rd Aiigust furthet said, "I did not charge those two gentlemen with
personal dishonour or dishonesty."

Mr. Dargaville, having been requested to formulate his charges in precise
terms, handed in the following :—

<< That the Government lent a sum of £225,000 of trust funds, over which the
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Treasurer has control, to the Bank of New Zealand, without security, for a term
of years, in a manner not contemplated by the law, thereby giving undue advan-
tages to one banking establishment closely allied with the present Administration.
Further, that Parliament has not yet been informed of the transaction."

Mr. C. Godfrey Knight, Actuary of the Insurance Department; Mr. Forster
Goring, Clerk of the Executive Council; and Mr. Luckie, Insurance Commis-
sioner, were called and examined as witnesses by Mr. Dargaville, and he and the
Treasurer made statements.

Mr. Dargaville, having been asked whether the charge already made was the
only one to be brought forward, replied that he would rest his accusation of
political corruption upon that charge.

The Treasurer then called Mr. Luckie, and also examined Mr. Gavin, Secre-
tary to the Treasury, and Mr. Gray, Secretary to the Post Office.

The Premier and the Colonial Treasurer offered themselves for examination
by the Committee or by Mr. Dargaville, but neither the Committee nor Mr.
Dargaville thought it necessary to examine either of them.

The transaction upon which the charge of political corruption was based was
fully investigated by the Committee. The facts are as follows :—

Some difficulty seems to have been experienced, by those having the control
and management of certain trust funds, in finding suitable investments for
them; and. in 1878 the then Postmaster-General first commenced the system
of making fixed deposits at interest of surplus Post Office funds in the Bank of
New Zealand; and Mr. Knight, Acting Insurance Commissioner, shortly after-
wards adopted the same course, sanctioned by minute of the then Colonial
Treasurer.

This has since become the practice with these and other Government depart-
ments when suitable investments were not otherwise aA^ailable, and has continued
to the present time. In March, 1879, the-total amount of these fixed deposits
had reached £262,000. On the 16th March, 1883, there was £225,000 on deposit
for two years, bearing 6 per cent, interest for the first year and 5| per cent, for
the second year ; and this formed the subject of the charge against the Treasurer.

The appended documents show that, except as to "investments," as denned
in the Act, the Insurance Commissioner is, in the opinion of the Solicitor-
General, by law independent of the Treasurer ; it is further shown that he keeps
a separate banking account, and operates on that account subject to the control
of the Controller-General. The deposit of £225,000 was made bycheques, signed
by the Commissioner and countersigned by the Controller-General. The
Treasurer appears to have been consulted by Mr. Luckie as to whether there
were any Treasury bills available for purchase. There being none, the deposit
was made with the bank with the consent of the Treasurer, although such consent
was not considered necessary to enable the transaction to be carried out.

No proof was offered in reference to the transaction of 1867, nor any other
special charge made ; but it appears that the accusations which occur in the
speech with regard to the Public Debts and Consolidated Loans Act must have
been made under some misapprehension, as the Premier was not a member of
the Government or of the General Assembly at the time these Acts were passed;
and, although the Treasurer was a member of the House of Eepresentatives, he
was not a member of the Ministry, and voted against the Acts referred to.

The Committee therefore find—
That, Mr. Dargaville having disavowed any intention to impute personal

dishonour or dishonesty to the Premier or Colonial Treasurer, any such charge
contained in or deducible from his speech is wholly withdrawn.

That Mr. Dargaville adhered to the charge of political corruption, and has
called evidence in support of the same, resting his case upon one particular
transaction.

That the evidence with regard to that transaction whollyfails to substantiate
the charge, and that the allegation of political corruption based upon it is
therefore entirely unfounded.

For the Committee.
Thomas Mason,

4th September, 1883. Chairman.

II
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS.

Tuesday, 14th August, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.

Present: Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Montgomery, Mr. Steward, Mr.
J. G. Wilson.

The orders of reference dated the 3rd and 10th August wereread.
On the motion of Mr. Driver, seconded by Mr. Montgomery, Besolved, That Mr. Mason do take

the chair.
On the motion of Mr. Montgomery, Besolved, That Mr. J. G. Wilson do take the chair in the

absence of Mr. Mason.
On the motion of Mr. Driver, seconded by Mr. Montgomery, Besolved, That the Hansard

reporter or reporters be summonded to appear before the Committee, and to bring note-books
containing Mr. Dargaville's speech on theproperty-tax delivered on Tuesday, the 31st July, 1883.

The Committee then adjourned till 11a.m. on Thursday, the 16th August, 1883.

Thuesday, 16th August, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed.
The order of reference dated the 14thAugust, 1883, was read.
Mr. Fisher, Mr. Drake, and Mr. W. A. Parkinson, Hansard reporters, "were present, and read

over the notes taken by them of Mr. Dargaville's speech delivered on the 31st July, 1883.
On the motion of Mr. Steward, Besolved, That the Chairman be directed to ascertain whether

Mr, J. Grey, Hansard reporter, will be able to appear before the Committee at the nextmeeting;
and, if not, that the Chairman shall take means to verify thereport.

The Committee then adjourned till 10 a.m. on Friday, the 17th August, 1883.

Feiday, 17th August, 1883.
The Committee meeting lapsed for want of a quorum.

Monday, 20th August, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed.
The Chairman gave notice that he had verified the report of that part of Mr. Dargaville's

speech, delivered on the 31st July, taken down by Mr. Grey, Hansard reporter. He read out that
portion of the speech, and pointed out the corrections made.

On the motion of Mr. Driver, Besolved, That the uncorrectedreport of the speech of Mr. Dar-
gaville, made in the House on the 31st July, 1883, has been verified by the examination of the
reporters' notes, and found to be substantially a correct report.

Besolved, That the Committee is of opinion that the speech of Mr. Dargaville on the 31st July,
1883, does impute political corruption against the Premier and Treasurer, and that it also imputes
personal dishonour to the Treasurer, and is capable of being interpreted as imputing personal
dishonour to the Premier.

The Committee adjourned till 11 a.m. on Tuesday, the 21st August, 1883.

Thuesday, 16th August, 1833.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The minutes of theprevious meeting were read and confirmed.
Mr. Dargaville was present and gaveevidence. In answer to that part of the resolution passed

by the Committee on Monday, the 20th August, 1883, namely, "That the Committee is of opinion
that the speech of Mr. Dargaville on the 31st July, 1883, does impute personal dishonour to the
Treasurer, and is capable of being interpreted as imputing personal dishonour to thePremier," Mr.
Dargaville made the following statement: "I did not intend to convey any personal imputation of
dishonesty against the Premier and Treasurer, and I only regret that the Committee consider the
words could bear such an interpretation."

The Committee then adjourned till 11 a.m. on Thursday, the 23rd August, 1883.

III
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Thursday, 23rd August, 1883.

The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G-. Wilson.
The minutes of theprevious meeting wereread and confirmed.
Mr. Dargaville attended.
Mr. Dargaville was asked by the Chairman the following questions : 1. Do you intend to go

outside the extracts which have been read over to you, and on which the Committeearrived at the
conclusion stated to you? (See page 4, question 52.) 2. Do you wish to make any statement
bearing on the charge of political corruption? (See question 61.) 3. Do you intend to call wit-
nessess to prove the charge ? (See question 65.) 4. And when will you be prepared to produce the
evidence? (See question 67.)

On the motion of Mr. Steward, Besolved, That the Chairman be requested to ask for extension
of time for reporting for one week.

On the motion of Mr. Macandrew, Besolved, That the Committee do adjourn till 11 a.m. on
Monday, the 27th August, when Mr. Dargaville said he would be prepared to produce evidence.

Monday, 27th August, 1883.
The Committee met, pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The Hon. the Premier, the Hon. the Colonial Treasurer, and Mr. Dargaville also attended the

meeting.
Mr. Dargaville read charge No. las follows: That the Government lent a sum of £225,000 of

trust funds, over which the Treasurer has control, to the Bank of New Zealand, without security,
for a term of years, in a manner not contemplated by the law, thereby giving undue advantages to
onebanking establishment closely allied with the presentAdmininstration. Further, that Parliament
has not yet been informed of the transaction.

The room was then cleared for deliberation, when the following resolution was passed : " That
the Committee will proceed to-day with the inquiry into the charge at present formulated, and will
proceed to-morrowwith the same, if needed, and, if time allow, any further charges; but will require
any additional charges beyond then to be submitted in general terms to the Committee not later
than Wednesday, before 11 a.m."

Mr. C. G. Knight, Actuary, attended and gave evidence, taken down by shorthand reporter,
after which he wasreleased from further attendance.

Besolved, That Mr. Dargaville give the Chairmannotice eachday asto witnesses he may require
for attendance at next meeting, and to produce any documents that may assist in giving such
evidence.

The meeting was then adjourned till 11 a.m. on Tuesday, the 28th August, 1883.

Tuesday, 28th August, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present:. Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont"

gomery, Mr. Steward, and Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The Hon. Major Atkinson and Mr. Dargaville both attended.
The minutes of the previous meeting wereread and confirmed.
Besolved, That the Chairman be instructed to summon the following gentlemen :D. M. Luckie,

Commissioner of Annuities; E. C. Hamerton, Public Trustee; W. Gray, Post Office Savings
Bank; J. C. Gavin, Secretary to the Commissioners of the Public Debts Sinking Fund, to appear at
I Committee-room, at 11 a.m. to-morrow, the 29th August, 1883, and to produce Orders in Council
having reference to investment of trust funds since 1877 of theirrespective departments.

The meeting was then adjourned till 11 a.m. on Wednesday, the 29th August, 1883.

Wednesday, 29th August, 1883.
The Committe met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, and Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The Hon. Major Atkinson and Mr. Dargaville were present;
The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmedi
The minute re formulating further charges was then read by the Chairman to Mr. Dargaville i
Mr. D. M. Luckie attended and gave evidence, taken downby shorthand reporter;
The meeting was then adjourned till 11 a.m. on Thursday, the 30th August; 1883;

Thubsday, 30th August, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The Hon. Major Atkinson and Mr. Dargaville attended,
The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed.

IV
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Mr. D. M. Luckie attended and gave evidence, taken down in shorthand. He also read papers

which he was authorized to produce relative to evidence given at previous examination.
Mr. Gray, Secretaryfor the Post Office Savings Bank, attended, and gave evidence, taken down

by shorthand reporter,
Mr. J. C. Gavinattended, and gave evidence, taken down by shorthand reporter.
Two opinions of the Solicitor-General were then read to the Committee, one dated the 27th

August, 1883, and the other the30th August, 1883. Another opinion of the Attorney-General and
the Solicitor-General, during the premiership of Sir George Grey, dated the 20th November, 1878,
wasread to the Committee.

The room was then cleared for deliberation, when the following resolution was carried: " That
the Committee be supplied as early as practicable with printed copies of evidence and papers to be
furnished to each member."

The meeting then adjourned till 10 a.m., on Monday, the 3rd September, 1883.

Monday, 3kd Septembeb, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The Hon. Major Atkinson and Mr. Dargaville attended.
The minutes of the previousmeeting were read and confirmed.
The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer attended, and said that either he or the Premier would be

happy to attend if necessary when called to answer any questions relative either to the charges
already brought against him, or any other questions that might be asked.

Mr. Dargaville stated that he wished to say nothing further than what he had already said,
and then left the room.

The Committee then deliberated, and some discussion took place asregards the evidence, when
theChairman was requested to send thefollowing letter to Mr. Dargaville : " 3rd September, 1853.—
Sir,—Will you immediately return all the copies of evidence for correction.—Yours truly, Thomas
Mason.—J. M. Dargaville, Esq., M.H.E." To which the following answer was sent: " Memoran-
dum for Mr. Mason.—Unfortunately, I have distributedall except two amongstmy friends. These
two I shall retain meantime.—J. M. D. — 3rd September, 1883."

Resolved, That, when the evidence is corrected, the Chairman be the only onewho shall see a
copy of the evidence, except with his authority.

On the motion of Mr. Steward, Resolved, That the following note be printed at the headof the
evidence : " Note.—The matter appearing in ordinary roman and erasure type is as transcribed from
the shorthand notes; that in erasure type and in italics, respectively, showing omissions, substitu-
tions, and amendments subsequently made, at the desire of the witnesses, as corrections of their
evidence."

Resolved, That the Chairman be requested to ask Mr. Dargaville for the omission on page 14 of
evidence. The omission was supplied as follows : " Thereby giving undue advantages to one bank-
ing establishment closely allied with the present Administration."

The Committee then deliberated on the evidence, and adjourned till 11 a.m. on Tuesday, the
4th September, 1883.

Tuesday, 4th September, 1883.
The Committee met pursuant to notice.
Present: Mr. Mason (Chairman), Mr. J. E. Brown, Mr. Driver, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Mont-

gomery, Mr. Steward, and Mr. J. G. Wilson.
The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed.
The Committee then deliberated and agreed to the report.
Resolved, That the Chairman be instructed to present the report, accompanied with the

minutes and evidence, and to movethat theybe printed, and that the report be read.
The Committee then adjourned sine die.

V
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Note.—The matter appearing in ordinary roman and erasure type is as transcribed from the shorthand notes :
that in erasure type and in italics respectively showing omissions, substitutions, and amendments subsequently made
at the desire of the witnesses as corrections of their evidence.

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

Tuesday, 21st August, 1883 (Mr. Mason, Chairman).
Mr. J. M. DaeCtAville, M.H.E., examined.

1. The Chairman.'] Mr. Dargaville, the Committee have agreed to this resolution: "That the
Committee is of opinion that the speech of Mr. Dargavilleon the 31st July, 1883, does imputepoli-
tical corruption against the Premierand Treasurer; and that it also imputes personal dishonour to
the Treasurer, and is capable of being interpreted as imputing personal dishonour to the Premier."
Do you wish to state anything to the Committee in regard to that resolution?—So far as the first
part of theresolution goes, I agree with it. I did impute political corruption ; I intended to impute
political corruption. I have yet to learn that in doing so I have transgressed ordinary parlia-
mentary rules. That is the position I take, as far as regards the first part of the finding of the
Committee. I entirely dissent from the finding in regard to the rest of it. I have to ask that the
Committee will indicate what portions of my speech impute personal dishonourto the Treasurer, or
are capable of imputingpersonal dishonour to the Premier. If the Committee will indicate the
portions that do that, then I will further reply.

2. I may state that the Committee has based its decision upon the following passages in your
speech:—

" I regret to think that in the financial arrangements of the Government of this colony the public interest is not
first considered; and I say it is almost necessarily so, because they are so bound up "with the interests and necessities
of a certain institution of this colony that it has become a matter of vital public importance that they should study
trie interests of thatinstitution; and I giveit as my candid opinion here, apart from all party considerations, that the
principal inducement on that occasion was to consider the interests of the institution that I have named.—(Name.)
Imean the Bank of New Zealand. I saythat Ibelieve—indeed,it is* my sincere conviction—that hadit not beenfor
the interests of that institution the Government would have been able to carry on until this yearwithout going to the
loan market.

" I will only refer to the financial legislation of the colony, so as to be able to show from the past that I
havereasonable ground for accusing this Ministry—and when I say this Ministry, I do not refer to any members
of it, except the leaders of this bicephalous Government; I mean the leader in the Upper House, and the
leader in this House—the Hon. the Premier and the Colonial Treasurer. Those are the gentlemen lam referring to
when lam speaking now of financial legislation and the effects of the property-tax. I shall go back a considerable
distance, and trace the origin of the influences that are now at work, and have been for years, in controlling the
financial legislation of this country. Igoback to the year 1867, when two Acts, which will not readily be forgotten
by thosewho were connected with politics at that time, were passed. One was called the Public Debts Act and the
other the Consolidated Loans Act. These Acts provided that the debts and obligations of different local bodies—
Provincial Governments and others —should be consolidated; that the colony as a whole should adopt them,
and undertake the payment of interest and principal. By the passing of those Acts something approaching an
enormous political fraud was committed upon the whole colony. Profits to the extent of hundreds of thousands
of pounds were placed in the pockets of a few individuals, and I charge the prominent persons connected
with the present Government with being the prime movers in that.

" The gentlemenwho were instrumental in doing that were the honourable member who now occupies the position
ofTrcmier in this colony,and his partner Mr. Thomas Russell; andI saythat in consideration of their services for that
matter—to show how valuable their services were regarded as being—they werepaid the sum of £10,000 by the Bankof

JSTew Zealandfor their politicalservices in connection with that matter. 1 want to mention these things to show that
these influences have been at work in the past, and are now at work. I say that, from that day to this, having tasted
the sweetsof the financial legislation of the colony at that time, they havepantedfor the same thing eversince. They
have enjoyedit over and over again, and now in respect of this property-taxthey enjoy special immunities and advan-■tages which are placing annually thousands of pounds ofprofits in their pockets; and Iwill proceed to show how. I
pointed out last year that one of the effects of this property-taxwas to place a hindrance in the way of persons who
are desirous of investing money in the colony—that it was a hindrance to the introduction of foreign capital. That is
so as regardsprivate individuals only. The Act is so framed, and the provisions are so cunningly drawn, as to give
special facilities to loan companies. I shall show how the Act, as it is now framed,operatesin respect, firstly, we will
say, of the principal loan company in the colony—l suppose that is the New Zealand Loan and Mercantile Agency
Company—and afterwardsin relation to this new bantling introduced to the public during the last few days, the pros-
pectus of which is published in our daily papers. It is providedby the 15th section of the Property Assessment Act.

"The honourable gentleman says 'Hear, hear.' I say that if he was a party to that Act he ought to hide his
head in shame, for such a gross piece of class legislation was never before enacted in this or in any other colony.
I now come to this other bantling which has been introduced to the public within the last fewdays. Imean the New
Zealand Land Mortgage Company (Limited). What do we'find here ? Another of the companies which are to derive
special benefit and exemption from this Property Assessment Act. I may say that the company is launched
under the auspices for the most part of the ring in Auckland, who I firmly believe govern the financial policy
of this country. The honourable gentleman calls himself the Treasurer of New Zealand. Sir, he is not
the Treasurer. He is the accountant—he is the instrument in the hands of those men. He is their willing
tool. They keep him in his office. He knows it. He knows that he could not occupy those benches for
a single week beyond the time he had their support at his back. He knows that: and therefore I say
he is their willing instrument; and therefore I charge. him -77 fully believing that I charge him justly —with being a party to this gross class.^gislation under the Property Assessment Act.

" It taxes very lightly the moneys of those capitalists who are bound together, and who are already exercising an
enormous power and influence,politically and otherwise, to the injury of this colony, and that it comes down very
heavily upon those who'have small means, or who send their money out to be invested apart from the operations of
that company. I charge the Colonial Treasurer with being a party to this, because he was the manwho brought in an
Act to abolish a tax which acted fairly and justly, and to put this in its place.
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" They maylaugh, but theirstanding-ground is not built uponrock : it is built uponclass legislation, it isbuilt upon
public wrongs, it isbuilt uponpolitical corruption, it is built upon nepotism, it is built uponfinancial terrorism. These
are the powers which hold these gentlemen on their feet. But I see a wave coming towards them. It is now above
the horizon ; it is gathering force : and the time will come, probably at the next general election, when it will have
reached them, and lam much mistaken indeed if it does notoverwhelm them. Then, when they have fallen, there will
be amazement that in a colony like this, with an intelligent population and free institutions, men behind the scenes
could so long have subordinated the legislation of the country to their individual wishes, and sacrificed the public
interest to their schemes of selfish aggrandizement."

Well, I have only to express my surprise so far at the basis on which the Committee have seen
fit to ground their finding; and before I enter further into the matter, it will be necessary for
me to carefully consider and consult probably with my friends. Therefore I propose to meet
you on whateverearly day you think it may be convenient.

Thubsday, 23bd August, 1883.
Mr. J. M. Daegaville, M.H.E., re-examined.

3. Mr. Dargaville: Mr. Chairman, Ido not think that I have anything to add to or takefrom
what I said before, either in the House or at your last Committee meeting. I simply adhere to what
I said, so far as my speech imputes political corruption to the Government, and I amprepared, if
opportunity is afforded me, to give more definite form and shape to the charges, in order that the
Committee and the House and the country may judge howfar I was justifiedin using the language
that I did. I further say here that I spoke solely from a sense of duty. I have carefully weighed
since the language that I then used, and, although I might, if I so desired, have shaped the
expressions so as to evade the responsibility which now appears to be put upon my shoulders ; yet
the mere fact of my having spoken straightforwardly and in unmistakeable terms is not, to my
mind, any sufficient reason why I should aew show a craven spirit and either express regret for or
desire to withdrawthe languageI then used. I again say, for the last time, let it have what weight
it may, that I didnot charge those two gentlemen with personal dishonour or dishonesty. But I
did, and do, charge the administration with political corruption ; and I presume, Sir, it nowremains
for me to substantiate that charge, if the Committee think it desirable that I should do so, from
public records, and from the oral evidence of reliable witnesses ; if they think that desirable or
necessary, lamprepared to go into the matter. I have nothing more to say, Sir, at present.

4. The Chairman: The duties delegated to us were of two kinds—first, relating to personal
honour ; and second, to political corruption. The first we have disposed of. The second is, whether
these allegations of political corruption are true or not. It is for the Committee to determine in
what mode they willproceed with the latter question—as to whether these allegations are true or
not.

5. Mr. J. Evans Brown: That is, the allegationsof political corruption ?
6. The Chairman : That is all.
7. Mr. Driver: I should like to ask Mr. Dargavillewhat is his distinction between political

corruption and personal dishonour? He has stated here that he had not imputed any personal dis-
honour.

8. Mr. Montgomery: Is this being taken down?
9. The Chairman: The shorthand-writer is taking down the questions, of course.

10. Mr. Montgomery : I wish to know, though, whether Mr. Driver is asking a question now?
11. The Chairman: He has asked for the distinction between personal dishonour and political

corruption.
12. Mr. Driver : I submit that I am in order.
13. Mr. Montgomery : But I wish to know howwe are proceeding—whether we are going to

examine Mr. Dargaville as a witness, or to accept Mr. Dargaville's statement?
14. The Chairman: If we know what the distinction is between political corruption and

personal dishonour, and if we coincide with the definition of that distinction,we shall possibly have
a line to goupon.

15. Mr. J. E. Brown: As Mr. Dargaville has imputed political corruption to the Premier,
perhaps he willbe good enough to say whatparticular part of his speech charges him with political
corruption, and what charge he intends to prove?

16. Mr. Montgomery: Ido not wish to have my question overlooked. I think the Chairman has
put the thingvery fairly ; there is the second charge to consider, viz., as to whether these allega-
tions are true.

17. Mr. Driver: But, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Montgomery says he is not going to be put down.
I claim the same privilege for myself. I have asked Mr. Dargaville a question, and Mr. Montgomery
is going to shut us up by asking something else.

18. The Chairman: If the Committee will allow it, it will be better for Mr. Dargaville to
say whether he will answer that question or not.

19. Mr. Macandrew : I may say that I, for one, should not be bound by Mr. Dargaville's
definition of political corruption.

20. Mr. Driver : Nor I either.
21. Mr. Montgomery : Iwas going on to say, when I was interrupted, that I wanted to know

what is the mode of procedure we ought to adopt in regard to this second charge ; whether Mr.
Dargaville is to be examined as a witness or not in the matter. I understood Mr. Driver took
exception to what I stated about the mode of procedure. He says he has a perfect right to ask
questions. Ido not dispute that.

22. Mr. Steward: I would submit this: Mr. Dargaville stated, if I caught him correctly, that
he adheres to the statement or accusation of political corruption as against the Administration. He

2



1.—13.

went on further to say that, if the Committeeso desired, he would formulate the charge; that is, he
would point out in what matters he intended to prove that contention. I submit, therefore, that it
is for this Committee to consider now whether it desires Mr. Dargaville to so formulate those
charges.

23. Mr. J. E. Brown : It would be far better for Mr. Dargaville to say whatare the charges
that he intends to formulate.

24. Mr. Driver : I should have followed up my previous question by asking that. But I fail
to see, for the life of me, why he should not be willing to answer the question I have asked him. I
wished to know from him what his distinction was between personal dishonour and political corrup-
tion ; and afterwards I should have asked him to point out, in support of his allegation, the
paragraph in his speech, a copy of which we have alreadyplaced in his hands. These are the
only questions I have to ask, and I think they have a materialbearing upon the whole subject.

25. The Chaw-man: I think the Committee may safely allow Mr. Dargaville to make an
explanation, if he feels free to do so.

26. Mr. Montgomery : Cert.ainly.
27. Mr. Dargaville : I am quite prepared to answer the question if Mr. Driver will put it again.
28. Mr. Driver : I ask you simply to state to the Committee what is, in your opinion, the dis-

tinction or differencebetween political corruption and personal dishonour.
29. Mr. Dargaville : Well, Sir, the distinction wlioro the two aoparato— the line of demarcation

separating the two—is a very nice one, as it appears to me. But on the broad ground there is this
clear distinction: that personal dishonour or dishonesty would mean the action of a public man
performed with a view to direct gain to himself individually. I would call that personal dishonour
and personal dishonesty. Where, however, apublic man, either in1 legislation or administration, has
before his mind the benefits to be conferred upon his supporters and theirfriends, as distinguished
from the benefits to be conferred on the colony at large, that I would call political corruption. Of
course, in giving this definition of it, it should be remembered thatI am not a lawyer, nor amI skilled
in these nice distinctions between one term and another. But that was, at all events, in my mind
when I discriminated between personal and political corruption. Of course lam quite aware that
hypercritical people will say that it amounts to the same thing, and that a political man who does
not do his duty by everybody alike is personally corrupt; but that certainly is not the common
acceptation of the term.

30. Mr. Driver: Then, you have a proof copy of your speech in your hands, with certain
paragraphs marked and numbered. Will you state in which of these paragraphs you charge
political corruption without personal dishonour ?

31. Mr. Dargaville : That is a matter which, at thismoment, I am not prepared to do, because I
was not aware of the direction your proceedings would take to-day. I did not expect that a
question of thiskind would be put to-4ay me, or I should probably have been prepared not only to
answer it definitely,but also to say what I propose to do in the way of substantiating the general
charges. I gathered from what transpired at the last meeting of the Committee that on this
occasion—or at all events until the Committee came to a resolution calling upon me to produce
witnesses—I should not be asked to do what Mr. Driver now speaks of.

32. Mr. Steward: Ido not know whether the questions should not be put through the Chair.
That would be the most convenient course to adopt, I think; it would enable the Committee to
consider the expediency of havingthe question put or not. It is desirable that a question should be
put to Mr. Dargaville to the following effect : Seeing that you have stated that you adhere to your
charge of political corruption against the Administration, do you desire to submit to this Committee
any evidence in support of that charge ? That, I think, is the question that ought to be put.

33. Mr. J.E. Brown : Ido not think the time has quite arrivedfor that question. I think Mr.
Dargavillehas told us that he is prepared to substantiate what he calls political corruption on the
part of certain persons. He deniesall the rest. I should like him to state what charge it is that he
is going to prove.

34. Mr. Driver : That is what I have asked him already, and he says he is not prepared to
answer it to-day.

35. Mr. Steward : Speaking again to the question I proposeto submit, which is the matter under
discussion, I would say this : that it does not appear to me to be necessary to press Mr. Dargaville
to formulate further charges. The charge is sufficiently definite already. He says, "I charge him
with political corruption." He should now be asked whether he desires to submit any evidence in
support of the charge.

36. Mr. J. E. Brown : Considering that Mr. Dargaville has already statedin the House that he
did not impute political corruption.

37. Mr. Dargaville : Oh!
38. Mr. J. E. Brown : Here it is in your speech in the House. [Mr. Brown read extract from

speech : "I say that I didnot accuse the Premier of corruptly using his political position."]
39. Mr. Dargaville : On what page of Hansard is that ?
40. Mr. J. E. Brown: Page 306.
41. Mr. Dargaville : And will you read what comes after that.
42. Mr. J. E. Brown : " What position had Mr. Whitaker in this House at the time?"
43. Mr. Dargaville : Exactly. That was in 1867. Mr. Whitaker was not in the House in

1867. You should read the whole story. (To the Eeporter) : Are you taking all this down?
44. Reporter : Yes.
45. Mr. Driver: He hadbetter take everything down, and then it can be sifted afterwards.
46. Mr. Dargaville: I could not have accused Mr. Whitaker of using his political position at

that date, because he had none. He was simply solicitor to the Bank of New Zealand. I
■endeavoured in the House to explain that in a most elaborate distinct and unmistaheable manner.
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47. The Chairman : If the Committee decide that I shall put Mr. Steward's question I will do-

so—as to whether Mr. Dargaville wishes to submit any evidence in support of the charge.
48. Mr. J. E. Brown : Before that is put I should like to consider the thing. From what Mr.

Dargaville has stated now, I do not consider that there is any necessity to bother about the thing
any more.

49. Mr. Montgomery : I do not expressany opinion about the matter one way or another.
50. The Chairman: I would ask the Committeeto allow me to do one thing before we pro-

ceed to that, and that is to ask Mr. Dargaville if he will instance any one or more charges in his
speech which he wishes to substantiate ? If the Committee decide that shall not be done, then we
may deliberate first.

51. Mr. J. E. Brown: Then I ask that we maydeliberate, and that the room be cleared.
[The room was accordingly cleared.]
On Mr. Dargaville's examinationbeing resumed,
52. The, Chairman: Mr. Dargaville, the Committee have, decided to ask you three or four

questions. First, Do you intend to go outside the extracts which have been read over to you, and
on which the Committee have arrived at the conclusions stated to you ?

53. Mr. Dargaville : I do not understand you exactly.
54. The Chairman: lamreferring to theparticular portionsof the speech which were marked.

Do you intend to go outside these to prove political corruption?
55. Mr. Dargaville : Do you mean to ask me whether I want to go beyond my own state-

ments ?
56. The Chairman : No; whether you propose to go overthe whole speech, or whether you

will be content to limit the matter to those extracts which have been marked.
57. Mr. Dargaville : I iatead amprepared to substantiate the charges of political corruption.
58. Mr. J. E. Brmvn: Ido not think you have made yourself quite clear, Mr. Chairman.. 59. Mr. Driver: You are aware, Mr. Dargaville, that the Committee found four or five para-

graphs in your speech imputing political corruption; you disclaim any imputation of personal dis-
honour ; the Committee want to know now whether, in your opinion, your proof of political cor-
ruption lies within those marked paragraphs, or whether you wish to take other parts of your
speech ?

60. Mr. Dargaville: The whole speech should be taken together.
61. The Chairman: The next question is, Do you wish to make any statement bearing on

the charges of political corruption?
62. Mr. Dargaville: Now?
63. The Chairman : Yes, or in the course of a day-or so.
64. Mr. Dargaville : Certainly, if the Committee so desire.
65. The Chairman: Then the third question is, Do you intend to call witnesses to prove the

charge ?
66. Mr. Dargaville: In such case, Yes.
67. The Chairman : And the last question is, When will you be prepared to produce the

evidence ? The Committeewantto have some ideaof thenatureof the evidenceyou wish to produce ?
68. Mr. Dargaville : I could begin on Monday.
69. The Chairman : Not to-morrow?
70. Mr. Dargaville : Possibly I might be able to begin to-morrow,but the position in which I

am placed is this : Standing as it were alone, with very considerable power and authority and legal
talent against me, I must be careful not to take any false step. Not that I am particularly afraid
of doing so, but I am aware that at any moment 3E-a»4iafele-te,if Igave an opportunity, I should be
tripped up and annihilated; so I wish to proceed deliberately. This is a question of great magni-
tude, and it is only reasonable that you should give me time. I will specify a convenient number
of charges as proposed, and these maybe taken as characteristic of the political actions generally
that my speech refers to. I propose to takea few at a time.

71. Mr. J. E. Brown: When can you do that definitely?
72. Mr. Dargaville : The charges that I propose to go into at the outset are will probably be

those which can be more conveniently proved here in Wellington.
73. Mr. J. E. Brown: But you talk about formulating these charges. When do you propose

to give them?
74. Mr. Dargaville : On Monday, if convenient to you.
75. Mr. Driver: Mr. Dargaville will probably recognize that he has had considerable time

already. We have now been sitting since Tuesday week.
76. Mr. Dargaville : You adjourned till to-day, instead of yesterday, at my request. That is

only one day. lam entirely free from any imputation that the sittings of the Committee have
been protracted on my account, beyondthat..

77. The Chairman: Could you not facilitate business by formulating one or two charges, in
order that we maycommence the examination of witnesses to-morrow?

78. Mr. Dargaville : lam notprepared to do that, because.lhave to confer with my witnesses
and friends. Ido not want to enter on this matter without being able to complete it.

79. The Chairman : Could you formulate one. or two charges to-morrow, so as to expedite
business.

80. Mr. Dargaville : I think it will expedite business to have the matter in form at the outset.
81. Mr. Driver : Then-ryou will have it in a completeform on Monday.
82. Mr. Dargaville : Some of them.
83. Mr. Steward: You will probably be able to proceed with some of them on Monday.
84. Mr. Dargaville : Yes.
85. Mr. J.E. Brown : In writing?
86. Mr. Dargaville : Yes.
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87. The Chairman : I will ask you, further, whether you could not possibly make it convenient

to produce your witnesses on Monday?
88. Mr. Dargaville : It is almost certain that I shall be prepared on Monday with certain

charges illustrative of what I mean, and probably with one or more witnesses to corroborate them.
You said, Mr. Chairman, that you are most anxious to finish this matter. So am I. But the onus
probandi is now, it appears, placed by you on my shoulders, and therefore I demand time for
consideration.

89. The Chairman : What I said was only from personal feeling, not in my position as chair-
man of this Committee. You must dissever the two. Personally, I want to get the matter
completed as early as possible.

Monday, 27th August, 1883.
Mr. Daegavillb further examined.

The Chairman: The meeting was adjourned till to-day, as you are aware, Mr. Dargaville, in
order that you might have time to formulate your charges.

Mr. Dargaville : Well, Sir, on considering the matter, I have come to the conclusion that it is
probably better that I should proceed with one charge at a time; and, having disposed of that, so
long as the Committee deem it necessary, to go on from one charge to another. But I venture to
assume that, if the first charge will show sufficient grounds to warrant me in imputing political
corruption, it willnot be necessaryfor me to multiply charges. I assume that lam not put here by
you, gentlemen, to undertake the task of an accuser of the Government, but simply to justifywhat
I myself have said so far. Am I right in that, or not ?

The Chairman: I think so. The question that we have to consider is: Are these allegations
which you have made in your speech true or untrue ?

Mr. Montgomery : Hear, hear.
Mr. Dargaville : And if I produce sufficient evidence to show, generally, that I am warranted

in making the allegations which I did, I presume I shallnot berequired to go on multiplying charges
which would cover almost an infinity of space, and occupy a great length of time. The Committee,
I presume, are desirous of bringing areport up to the House this session, and the session is already
drawing to a close. If, therefore, I were to multiply charges, it would be utterly impossible for me
to substantiate every one of them within the time at your disposal; consequently I propose to go
on with one charge at a time. Is thatagreeable to the Committee ? After this one charge is dis-
posed of—exhausted, so to speak—and if the Committee say, "We don't think Mr. Dargaville was
warranted in imputing political corruption on the strength of what he has adduced; werequire him
to go on with other charges;" then I shall probably do so. But I presume that, if I shall have suc-
ceeded in showing you that I had reasonable grounds for imputing political corruption, you will
not require me to go over the wholerange of theproceedings of this Administration during the time
they have been inpower. ¥faw5 Such a course would to my mind, be reducing the inquiry to an ab-
surdity, and it would be placing it beyond thepowerof this Committee to come to a definiteconclusion
before the end of the present session. That is why I propose to take one charge—if they are to be
called "charges"—at a time, andexhaust it before proceeding to another. I hold one of thesecharges
in writing in my hand; it is the first I propose to place before the Committee. If the Committee
say to me, when I submit that charge, "Even if you substantiate that charge, we do not call it
political corruption," then I shall know the ground that I am standing upon, and what further steps
to take.

Mr. Macandreio : I should say that, if the Committee are satisfied that the one case which
Mr. Dargaville intends to bring forward bears out the charge of political corruption, that would be
an end of the matter.

Mr. Montgomery : I think, Mr. Dargaville having the order of reference before him, and there
having been a finding of the Committee that he has imputed political corruption, it is his duty now
to proceed, in whatever way he considers best, to show that the allegations are true ; and it is for
the Committee to decide afterwards whether he has actually proved those charges or not.

Mr. J. E. Brown : That is a question which the Committee ought to carefully consider. At
our last sitting it was understood that Mr. Dargaville was going to formulate charges which would
come within the term of "political corruption." Now he proposes to take one charge-

Mr. Dargaville : At a time.
Mr. J. E. Brown: And, having exhausted that, and if we decide that it is not political corrup-

tion—or, if it is, that he must prove it—then he has many other charges to fall back upon.
Mr. Dargaville : Not to " fall back upon," but to "go on with."
Mr. J. E. Brown: That is what I meant. I understood that he was going on to say that he

was going to formulate his charges. If he has a dozen of them, and he proposes to travel over one
of them without informing the Committee of what else is to follow, I think that would be very
inconvenient for us. In my opinion the whole thing could be settled in five minutes without that.

Mr. Driver: I think Mr. Dargaville might do this : While we cannot expect him to prove the
whole of the charges at the same time, I think he should state to the Committee the various charges
he has to make, and then take one at a time, after he has told us what these charges are. I would
submit that we have got ten da^s yet in which to make a report—at anyrate, all this week; and,
to enable him to get,on—as I dare say Mr. Dargaville is as desirous of ending this matter as we are
—the Committee might agree to sit daily at a convenient hour, and finish the thing off. It is quite
open to Mr. Dargaville to take any course he likes: the Committee cannot compel Mr. Dargaville
to prove his charges, nor make him say anything in support of them. The Committee only say,

We make certain findings, and we give him an opportunity of saying what he likes about them."
Mr. Steward: As a matter of individual opinion, in reply to what Mr. Driver has said, I may
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remark that it is not necessary for Mr. Dargaville, in establishing his allegations, to prove that
throughout their administration the present Government have been guilty of political corruption:
it would be sufficient to prove an instance or instances of such corruption.

The Chairman: But it seems to me more convenient that Mr. Dargaville should put all the
charges before us, and that he should proceed with them on the understanding on which the Com-
mittee parted the other day.

Mr. Dargaville : That would be unfair to the Government and unfair to myself, because I
should then have made certain specific charges, the inquiry into many of which weald-aet-kaTO
kees-ethefwise could not be entered upon at all this session. Ipresume the time at your disposal
would not enable you to go into them all. Already it is alleged that lamepiftfiiag-eutprotracting
this inquiry with a view of preventing the Committee from arriving at a decision this session.

Mr. Driver: The Committee has not said so., has it ?
Mr. Dargaville-: No; but thefriends of some of them have.
Mr. Driver: Then Ido not think you have any right to take any notice of outside opinion.
Mr. Dargaville : I am telling you what has been said, and I wish to state that it is not my

intention to do anything of thekind. That is why, in fact, that Ipropose to go on with one charge
at a time. As Ihave already said, it would be tanfair to myself as well as unfair to the Government
were I to specify a large number of charges, which could not possibly be disposed of within the time
at your disposal, and which would be therefore left in an unsupported or uncontradicted state ; it
would be unfair to everybody concerned. The best way is to go on in a business-like manner and
take the charges oneby one.

Mr. Driver: In my opinion this matter has now assumed the position not as between Mr.
Dargaville and the Government, but as between Mr. Dargaville and the House, although I grant
that the Government are affected by it. This Committee, I would point out, has been appointed
by the House, which has given it certain instructions, and we are bound by the House to do certain
things, keeping in mind the necessity of doing everybody justice. Therefore it is our duty to treat
Mr. Dargaville fairly, and to base our report on the evidence that comes before us. You (Mr.
Dargaville) have made certain charges, and we are asked to say whether these chaiges are made
and whether they are true. We have simply to hear what yoii have got to say and to give you
every latitude in proving them, if you choose to do so.

Mr. Steward : Then the position I understand Mr. Dargaville asks us to put him in is this:
that he may be allowed to proceed with the general indictment, first on a count which he willnow
disclose, and afterwards, if necessary, on a presently-undisclosed count.

Mr. J. G. Wilson: Surely we can only go into those charges which are down on the minutes.
The Chairman: I think you will find that Mr. Dargarville said in his evidence that he did not

confine himself to these particular parts of his speech.
Mr. J. E. Brown : But the Committee decided that the only thing wecould see in the shape of

alleged political corruption was in the quotations that we have furnished to Mr. Dargaville, no
matter what he wishes to prove outside of these.

The Chairman: I should like to ask you, Mr. Dargaville, whether, supposing the Committee
does not choose to give a decision on the first charge, you will then proceed with the secondor third,
as the case maybe ?

Mr. Dargaville: I think the Committee ought to come to a decision on each charge as it is
exhausted.

The Chairman : But are you prepared, in case the Committee refuses to consider number one
charge, to go on with number two.

Mr. Dargaville : Not if the Committee declines to consider it at present. lam not going to be
entrapped in thatway. The obvious intention of that would be to get me to formulate the whole
©^-jHy-ebargee-at-Uie-pFeeeHt-tHHeseveral charges at a time.

Mr. J. E. Brown: That is what you promised to do.
Mr. Macandrew : Mr. Dargaville has said in his former evidence, " I did, imputepolitical corrup-

tion, and I impute political corruption." What is political corruption?
Mr. Driver: We are not asked to decide what political corruption is.
Mr. Montgomery : It is now for Mr. Dargaville,if ho thinks proper, to justifythe allegations he

made in the House.
Mr. J. E. Brown : From our findings.
Mr. Dargaville : I await the convenience of the Committee to begin.
Mr. J. E. Brown : Then I ask, Mr. Chairman, that we deliberate on this point.
Mr. Driver : Ido not think any deliberation is necessary. It would be the wiser course, and

we should get on with the business of the Committee faster, if we intimate to Mr. Dargaville that
to-morrow we shall expect him, if he is not prepared with the whole of his charges to-day, he shall
have them ready for the Committee as a whole by a certain date. This question of deliberation,
however,is taking up almost the whole of our time.

The Chairman : I was going to suggest that, after hearing the first charge, we could consider
whether we should decide at once upon it, and then determine whether we should give Mr. Darga-
ville an answer upon that, and proceed.

Mr. Sfcivard ' Mr. Dargaville has already said that he is ready to proceed with his first charge.
Mr. Dargaville: Yes ;-dt is this, I have it in writing: " That the Government lent a sum of

£225,000 of trust funds, over which the Treasurer has control, to theBank of New Zealand, without
security, for a-term of years, in a manner not contemplated by the law, thereby giving undue
advantages to one banking establishment closely allied with the present Administration. Further,
that Parliament has not yet been informed of the transaction."

Mr. Driver: What date?
Mr. Dargaville : My witnesses and therecords will give you that. I now ask the Committee to
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deliberate on this point: whether that statement, as it stands, if substantiated by records and. evidence, will constitute political corruption or not ?

Mr. Driver: The Committee cannot do that.
The Chairman : Let us proceed with the proof you have to offer.
Mr. Dargaville : I will prove it from tlie-e¥idefi«e-eithe Actuary of the Life Insurance Depart-

ment, and from Mr. Forster Goring, kefe-G=ewHH»e»t-9ffieiate; Clerk of the Executive Council, and
others, as well as from official documents. It would, of course, have been unbecoming on my part
to have gone to these gentlemen personally and told them that I waated required them to give
evidence eft-Hjy-bekaW! in this matter ; and I therefore ¥efa»erequest you, as Chairman of this Com-
mittee, and by virtue of the powers vested in you by the House, to sefaeafc procure the attendance
of these gentlemen.

Mr. Driver: They cannot be got to-day.
Mr. Dargaville : They can ; Mr. Knight, the Actuary, was on the Public Accounts Committee

only half an hour ago.
The Chairman: Have you any other charge that you could go on with without waiting

for witnesses ?
Mr. Dargaville : I am not going to make any charge on my ownunsupported assertion.
The Chairman : Have you any charge for which witnesses can be gotmore easily than these ?

I have sent for the witnesses you have named, but I think it might expeditebusiness if you had any
other charge that could be gone on with in the meantime.

Mr. J. E. Brown: I think the sense of the Committee should be taken as to the charge. It
does not, I think, arise out of the order of reference.

Mr. Dargaville: It does. I referred over and over again to the intimate relations existing
between the present Government and the Bank of New Zealand; and if that does not arise out of
the order of reference I do not know what does.

Mr. J. G. Wilson: Of course you were aware, at the time you made your speech in the House,
that this sum of money was placed to the credit of the trust funds of the Bank.

Mr. Dargaville: Of course.
The Chairman : Do you know whether this money was lodged with the Bank of New Zealand

here or in Auckland ?
Mr. Dargaville : I presume, Sir, that is immaterial.
The Chairman: But my object is to expedite business; and when I asked the question I had

in view the facility of procuring the necessary witnesses.
Mr. Dargaville : You need not help me much in that direction; I willundertake to do my part

of the business. You have put upon me the necessity of proving these things, and my witnesses
will prove everything. Ido not want anything to be taken on myown bare, unsupported assertion.

The Chairman : If the Committee wishes to deliberate'—
Mr. J. il. Brown: Certainly ; I wish the Committee to deliberate on the question I have raised

before we proceed any further.
Mr. Dargaville : Is it desired, then, that I should withdrawwhile you are deliberating ?
The Chairman : Everybody, of course.
Mr. Dargaville : There is one submission I wish to make to the Committee before I withdraw,

and I think it will be admitted that it is areasonable one. It is this : I think it would, in fairness
to me, be held to be questionable—I put it respectfully, and on general grounds—whether any
memberor membersof this Committee who are pecuniarily interested in the affairs of the Bank of
New Zealand should sit and vote on the question now before the Committee—on No. 1 charge. I
submit that to you for your consideration as men of honour.

Mr. Driver: This charge appears to be made directly against the Treasurer.
Hon. Mr. Whitaker : If the Committee willpermit me for a minute or two,I should like to say

a few words. I presume that, in the ordinary mode of adjudicating upon matters of this kind, I
should have been at liberty to be present throughout the investigation, and to take part in the pro-
ceedings. I wasperfectly content to leave the whole matter in the hands of the Committee. I have
not interfered in the matter in any way whatever so far ; but if I can afford the Committee informa-
tion of any description whatever, or if the Committee desire to examine me, I am quite ready to
waive the right of an accusedperson not to be examined, and am prepared to state anything I know
in connection with these charges. I shall bo very glad to attend and be examinedby Mr. Darga-
ville, if he pleases, or any of the members of the Committee, or subject myself to any cross-exami-
nation, or anything that maybe desired. I desire that the Committee shouldreceive the fullest pos-
sible information I can give them on the subject; and,with regard to the Treasurer, lam authorized
to say the same thing on his part. Having said that, Idonot know that I shall return to the Com-
mittee, unless something happens which seems to require my attendance. lam desirous that the
whole thing should be sifted to the bottom, and I am prepared, with the Treasurer, to afford all

.possible information. I presume I have a right to be present and takepart in the proceedings if I
desire.

The Chairman: Undoubtedly.
Hon. Mr. Whitaker : So far I have not thought it desirable to do so.
The Chairman : I might perhaps ask you to tell the Treasurer of the charges, and he can

attend the Committeeif he likes. The present charge is directly a charge against him.
Hon. Mr. Whitaker : Yes,; it is a matter which I myself know nothing about. Iwould simply

remark, with regard to the charge, however, that it does not mention any date.
The Chairman:- True ; but that will come out in evidence.
Hon. Mr. Whitaker : But perhaps Mr. Dargaville will give us the date.
Mr. Dargaville : The witnesses and records will give all that.
Hon. Mr, Whitaker: Yes, but if you would tell me about what time this took place—within a

year.
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Mr. Dargaville : It is within a year from the present date.
[The Committee then deliberated in private.]
On resuming,
The Chairman : The Committee have come to the following resolution, Mr. Dargaville : " That

the Committee will proceed to-day with the inquiry into the charge at present formulated, and will
proceed with the same to-morrow, if needed, and, if time allow, any further charges; but will
require any additional charges beyond these to be submitted in general terms to the Chairman not
later than Wednesday next, at 11 o'clock." You will be allowed to-day and to-morrow to proceed
with all thecharges youplease, but on Wednesday you will be asked to completeyour list of charges
before 11 o'clock.

Mr. Knight examined.
The Chairman: Mr. Knight, you are called upon by Mr. Dargaville to give evidence in support

of the charges he has made.
Mr. Dargaville : You are one of the principal officers of the Government Life Insurance

Department, are you not, Mr. Knight ?—I am the Actuary.
Are you aware of the manner in which the funds belonging to the department are invested?

—The investment of the f nds does not come before me in my present capacity as Actuary.
That is, officially?—Officially.
In the official routine?—Exactly.
Are you aware that a sum of £250,000 has been invested in a certain direction by the

department within the last year or so; invested here ?—Yes; lam aware that some £225,000 has
been lent to the Bank.

To the Bank of New Zealand?—Yes.
In the study of your profession you have had experience of the manner in which insurance

companies generally are managed and conducted? You have made a study of them, Ipresume?—
I have.

Are you aware of any insurance company—but before I ask you that let me ask you
this : Do you not think that the Life Insurance Department of the Government ought to be
conducted on such a basis as that it should stand or fall—it should be in a position to stand or fall
—by itself, without relying on the colonial guarantee?—lt should do so, certainly.

To be sound business ?—Yes.
Quite as much so, in fact, as any so-called private insurance company?—Just the same

care should be taken.
Are you aware of any insurance company that has lent, or would lend, to the Bank so large

a sum as that in proportion to its means—I suppose nearly a third of its whole assets—for a
lengthened period without security?—l am not aware of 6se any.

Would you consider that an insurance company which would do that was acting in a
careful and prudent manner?—I think a private company would divide such a large sum of money
overother banks; not put it all in one bank.

You would not think it prudent to do so ? From your experience you are satisfied that a
private company would not consider it prudent to do so ?■—l do not think a private company would
do it.

You have been away on leave of absence, have you not ?—Yes.
Were you in the colony about six or seven months ago, in the performance of your duties

here, when the money was lent to the Bank?—l think not.
Youwere not consulted in any way?—No.
If you had been consulted as Actuary, or as a principal officer of the department, would you

have advised such an investment?—I would not have advised the investment, but ofcourse it might
have suited the Government to do this as a matter of general policy, quite independent of the
particular policy of the office.

Mr. Dargaville: That is all I have to say to Mr. Knight. I now want Mr. Forster Goring's
evidence to be taken.

The Chairman: Do you know anything, Mr. Knight, of the date of this deposit with the
Bank? Have you any idea of it ?—No; the actual date was given in evidence before the Public
Accounts Committee recently. The transaction took place in my absence.

Can you state in what month it took place ?—No; but it must have been between November
1882, and March, 1883.

Mr. Montgomery : Does the Treasurer want to put any questions ?
lion. Major Atkinson : No.
The Chairman: Do you know, Mr. Knight, if any interest is allowed by the Bank, and, if so,

at what rate ?—I believe interest at the rate of 6 per cent, was given, but I cannot speak from my
own knowledge.

You have no certainknowledge of it?—No, but Ibelieve it was 6 per cent.
Mr. Macandrew : For what period was this money borrowed?-—For a term of years, I think;

but I cannot speakpositively; I really had nothing to dowith it.
Hon. Major Atkinson : Before the Committee separates I wish to say that I shall be happy

to expedite the business before it in any way I possibly can, either by the production of public
documents, or offering myseft to be examined as a witness, or in any other way.
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Tuesday, 28th August, 1883.
Mr. Foestbb Gobing, Clerk of the Executive Council, examined.

Mr. Dargavillc.—Mr. Goring, I presume you have in your hand the minutes of the proceed'
ings of the Executive Council ?—Yes. Every distinct resolution of the Council is entered in the
minute-book of the Council.

Hon. Major Atkinson: I have very great doubt whether the Clerk of the Executive Council
should be permitted to produce the minutes of the Executive; and as one of the Executive I am
sworn to secrecy, and it appearsto me such a thing should not be permitted, at any rate without
an order from the Governor, in whose charge this book is.

Mr. Bargaville : In reply to what the Treasurer has said, I say that, although the members of
the Executive Council may be sworn to secrecy generally, yet, in a matter of this kind, where an
Act of Parliament is being giveneffect to, or ought to have been given effect to, by the Executive
Council, not only is it a matter in regard to which secrecy should not be observed, but it is a matter
which ought to have been made known by Proclamation in the Government Gazette to the whole
world. One partof mycontention is that an act has been done by the Government not contemplated
by the law, and it will be necessaryfor me to ascertainwhat Order in Council, if any, has been made
in terms of section 19 of "Tho Public Seventies Act, 1878," or section 5 of "The Public Seventies
Act, 1882." I require to know whether any Order in Council in terms of those sections of the Acts
has been made, and, if so, the terms in which it has been made. It is obvious that secrecy in a
matter of that kind is never contemplated, because it has reference to a matter of public concern,
which the whole of the public have a right to know, namely, what class of investments are open to
thepublic for the public money; the money of the Public Trustee, owned by the public; also the
money of the Government Insurance Department: and I claim we have aperfect right to know in
what way moneys of that kind may be invested. To further justifymy contention I would quote
that the original Act, called "The Government Insurance and Annuities Act, 1874," indicates
particularly, and limits, the securities in which these moneys may be invested. That clause is as
follows:—

"37. Any part of the moneys standing to the credit of the Government Insurance Account
may be invested, under the direction of the Governor in Council, in Government securities of New
Zealand, orof the UnitedKingdom, orof anyof the Australasian Colonies, including Tasmania, issued
under the authority of the Parliament of the said countries respectively, or in any provincial, Eoad
Board, or municipal securities in New Zealand, issued under such authority : Provided that, for any
uninvested part of such moneys, interest at the highest, bank rates allowed at the timefor other
trust funds shall be paid from time to time out of the Consolidated Fund, and credited to the
Government Insurance Account."

I may say that, since that Act was passed, " The Public Seventies Act, 1878," and " The Public
Seventies Act, 1882," have been passed, giving extendedpowers; but this serves to indicate that the
fullest publicity should be given to these things. To contend, therefore, that a further extension of
the provisions of that clause should beregarded as a matterof profound secrecy is contrary to reason
and common-sense. The other clause to which I have referred—section 20 of " The Public Ee-
venues Act, 1878,"—says,—

" 20. All securities for public moneys so invested, and all securities held by or on behalf of the
Commissioners of the Public Debt Sinking Funds, the Postmaster-General, the Government Insur-
ance Commissioner, or thePublic Trustee, shall be held in the joint custody of the Audit Office, the
Secretary to the Treasury, and one or other of the above-mentioned officers, and shall bo secured
under three keys, one of which shall be held by each of the officers, having custody of the said
securities. All such securities shall be inspected by the officers in whose custody they are, or by
three officers of their respective departments on their behalf, at least once in each year, and a return
of all the securities found on such inspection shall be laidbefore Parliament within thirty days after
"the opening of each session."

That is the section of the Public Seventies Act bearing upon this matter nowbefore the Com-
mittee. Section sof the Public Revenues Act of last year says,—

" 5. The subsection to the nineteenth section of the said Act is repealed, and thefollowing shall
be read in lieu thereof : The Postmaster-General, the Government Insurance Commissioner, the
Public Trustee, and the Commissioners, of the Public Debts Sinking Funds, may, subject to the
approval of the Colonial Treasurer, and any Act or Acts to the contrary notwithstanding, invest
any part of thebalances of their respective accounts in such securities as the Governor in Council
from time to time declares to be securities in which such moneys may be invested, and may from
time to time sell and convert into money any such securities, and cause such money, togetherwith
any interest accruing thereon, to be paid into the account to which such securities belong."

Now, what I want Mr. Goring to prove is this : whether an Order has been made by the
Governor in Council declaring that the Bank of New Zealand is a security in which these moneys,
the £225,000, may be invested. First, I want to know if such an Order in Council or Orders in
Council have been, made ; second, the terms in which they are made, namely, what limitation they
placed upon this power, because it is important to the public to know whether, if a quarter of a
million or so may be invested for two or three years, two or three millions may not be invested or
locked up in the same way for ten or twenty years. It is an important matter therefore to know
not only whether the Order in^Council has been made, but the terms and conditions which surround
it. That is my reason for having asked you to be good enough to ask Mr. Goring to appearhere
to-day to give his eyidence. Before I question him, however, I will, with your permission, in order
to fortifymyself in the position I take up—namely, that this Order in Council should have been
regarded as a matter of public concern, and not a secret resolution of the Executive Council-—if you
will permit me to do so, I will ask Sir George Grey—than whom no one is more familiar with the
duties and obligations concerning an Order in Council—to tell us what the practice is in regard
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to matters of thiskind. Then, if you think that Mr. Goring ought not to be examined, or that it
is too sacred a matter to enter upon, of course I will submit to your ruling; but I will ask you
to allow me to place on record the opinions of Sir George Grey as to the usual practice in respect
to matters of this kind.

The Chairman : Are you willing, Mr. Goring, to produce the minutes bearing upon this
question to-day?—Not without the direction of the Governor. If you ask me to mention the
matter to the Governor, and he orders me to attend and show everything, I shall do it.

Wednesday, 29th August, 1883.
Mr. D. M. Luckie, examined.

Mr. Dargaville.] You are Commissioner of Government Insurance ?—Yes.
Has the sum of £225,000, funds of your department, been placed for a term of years in

theBank of New Zealand?—Yes ; in five separate sums.
On different dates ?—Yes; in January, February, and March last; the amounts were £10,000,

£10,000, £5,000, £100,000, and £100,000
For what period ?—Two years.
Do you know if any Order in Council was issued in terms of section 5 of "The Public

Eevenues Act, 1882," or any other Act, as to the investment of the funds and the securities on
which they may be invested ?—No; I have no Order in Council bearing on the iaveßfaaeat on dopooit
disposal on deposit of funds belonging to the department.

I am speaking of investmentssuch as this for aperiod of two years ?—lt has been held that this
is not an investment.

You have no Order in Council ?—No ; not as respects deposits..
You mean by "it has been held," that that is the opinion of somepersons?—Yes.
Then, in doing that, you did not act under the authority of or in compliance with any Order in

Council ?—No.
And, so far as you know, there is no Order in Council having reference to the transaction or

to similar transactions ?—No; there was no such order.
You are familiar, I presume, with the provisions of "The Public Eevenues Act, 1878," a sub-

section of section 20 of which provides: " All such securities shall be inspected by the officers in
whose custody they are, or by three officers of their respective departments on their behalf, at
least once in each year, and a return of all the securities found on such inspection shall be laid
before Parliament within thirty days after the opening of each session" ?—Yes.

Are you awarewhen any such inspection took place last?—ln March last.
Youhave, I presume, in your possession the acknowledgments of the bank for these moneys?—

The deposit receipts are in my possession.
Your individualpossession?—Yes, as Commissioner; they are inmy safe.Not under the control of three persons ?—No.
Do you not regard them as " securities " under the meaning of the Act ?—No.
Do you hold, then, that you would not be evading or breaking the law by investing these

moneys to any amount or for any period of years in the same manner?—I donot think I have been
breaking the law.

If it had been two millions instead of a quarter of a million, do you think that investing it in
the same manner for aperiod of years would not have been evading the law ?—I do not think it is
fair to put such a hypothetical question. I am dealing with only £225,000; and lam advised the
deposit is not a " security " under the Act.

I submit to the Committee that I am warranted in putting the question, because my object is
to test the legality of the transaction as to whether there has or not been an evasion of the law;
because, you will observe, I have asserted it has been done in a manner not contemplated by the
law. I wish to substantiate that, because if the law contemplated the investment of a quarter of a
million, and placed no limit, it must be held to have contemplated the investment of a much
larger sum.

To the Witness.] I therefore ask you again if you would feel yourself at liberty to invest, say,
half a million of the money of the department in the same way ?—I do not know until the circum-
stances arose. I act in accordance with what seems best for the office at the time.

As to the termfor which this money is lent to the bank, do you consider that the term of two
years might, under any circumstances, be exceeded?—I do not think I should like to exceed it.

Why not ?—I think it would be too long to exceed it, except under very particular circum-
stances.

Can you give your reason for that ?•—I can only say that it is advisable not to go to too great
an extent in depositing moneys in that fashion.

Yes ; but will you give us somereason, not your opinion ?—I donot think it would beadvisable.
I might require the money for better investment. I get 7 per cent, sometimes.

But was there no prospect of your getting better investment for this, say, 7 per cent, during
the period of two years ?—Yes; but I am always having more moneys accruing. The gsees
income of the department is about £208,000 a year.

And therefore you feelsfchat you are warranted in lending this money to the bank for that
long period ?—Yes,_

I presumeyou consulted the Treasurer ?—I mentioned the matter to him.
Did he approveof it ?—Yes ; he offered no objection. I was getting paymentof Treasurybills,

forwhich I had been getting 3 5 per cent., and for which therewas then no demand, I made about
£1,400 to £1,500 a year of additional interest by the change.
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Do you consider that the rate of interest obtained for investments of that kind is the first
consideration ?—No ; safety, I should say, would naturally be the first, and a good rate of interest
the second; and I think Isecured both. I lookupon that as simply deposit account.

For two years ?—Yes.
I call that investment.—The Controller-General does not hold the same opinion.
If it had been for three years, would it have been an investment ?—You are asking again for

an opinion on a question that I think is hypothetical.
You assert that you look upon it not as an investment, and I want to know what period

would constitute an investment?—I do not know.
Do you regard it as a deposit and not an investment on account of the shortness of the

term ?—No.
Why, then ?—Because it is put in the bank on deposit account.
Are you not reasonably warranted in assuming that the bank uses the money ?—I should

think so.
It does not hold the money there simply for safe custody ?—I-de-aet-k-aew; It is part of

its business to use it, I presume.
Notwithstanding that, you consider it simply as a deposit, and not a loan to thebank ?—Yes.
Have you had experience in the management of insurance companies before you were put

in thisposition ?—No ; I had a good deal to do with insurance matters at various times.
Are you aware of any insurance company which to your knowledge has invested so large a

proportion of its available means in a manner similar to this?—I could not say. I know that some
of the larger companies wea-tee in these colonies have very large sums on fixed deposit and
large sums at call.

Are you aware of any insurance company in these colonies having lent anything like £225,000
to onebank for a period of two years ?—No ; I am not aware of it.

Have you had any experience in financial matters prior to your being placed in your present
position ?—Not much ; I have had a very general experience; I was in a lawyer's office as a young
man, and had to do with conveyancing and mortgages.

I presume, in a large matter of this kind, you would feel it your duty to be guided by
the Treasurer to a very great extent?—I would be guided by him as to whether or not he
could afford me Treasury bills. Of course I should not have invested such a large sum without
letting him know whatI proposed doing.

Then, he knew and approvedof it before you did it ?—^Yes ; he consented to it.
Then, the receipts you hold from the bank for this £225,000 you do not regard as securities

of such a nature as are required under the subsection of the Act of 1878 which I read ?—ln point of
fact Ido not and did not. Before my time these deposit receipts were in the habit of being held
by the Controller-General under the three keys, but towards the close of 1879 the Controller-
General said to me, "These are not securities. You must keep them yourself. It is simply
another account which the Commissioner has opened in the bank. They are not securities. Take
them away andkeep them yourself;" and that I have done ever since.

Is that why you did not think it necessary that Parliament should be informed what the
transactions were?—Parliament is informed of it in due course in the regular annual accounts of
the department, which show all the securities held.

Is this deposit of £225,000 shown in any published record ?—No; because, by the Public
Bevenues Act of last year, the financial year of the department was changed so as to end on the
31st December instead of the 30th June as formerly ; and, therefore, the published accounts esly
ee»e were only up to the 31st December last. Before the Public Accounts Committee I have
submitted a draft accountfor the half-yearending the 30th June, in which tfeis-ie these deposits are
shown.

That is not before Parliament yet'?—No ; the statutoryperiod had not arrived.
You supplied that information to the Committee in reply to a question asking for it ?—Yes.
How came this money to be dealt with in that way? Can you, of your own motion,

without even the verbal approval of the Treasurer, do it ?—lf you turn to section 10 of " The
Public Eevenues Act, 1878," you will find that the account of the deparment can be operated on
only by the cheque of the Commissioner, countersigned by the Controller-General.

It was in that way these moneys weretransferred ?—lt was.
Transferred from ordinary account to this form of investment or loan to thebank ?—Those are

not my terms.
Section 12 of the Act of 1878 says all moneys in the bank are lent to the bank, so you are

familiar with the terms?—Yes.
But you do not hold that you would be at liberty to undertake an enormous transaction like

this without theknowledge and consent of the Treasurer?•—I do not think I should be right with-
out teliittg consulting him,. But it is simply a transfer of account. Ibelieve the law gives me power
to do it, acting with the Controller-General.

Do you believe the law gives you power to invest an unlimited amount for an indefinite period
in the samefashion ? Has the law, according to your interpretation of it, placed no limit to it in
that way ?—I do notknow; that is a legal question.

You told us you believe you were acting under your legal power. Now, I ask if what I have
stated would be within your power?—You speak of an unlimited amount and an unlimited period,
and you expect me to give a sensible answTer.

Yes ?—Well, I cannot do it.
You do not think a quarter of a million for two years is an unreasonable period or amount ?—

No.
And the Treasurer agreed with you?—Yes.
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Ipresume you are familiar with the provisions of "The Government Insurance and Annuities

Act, 1874" ?—Yes; quitefamiliar.
You are aware that section 37 distinctly defines the manner in which such moneys should be

invested—in Government securities, &c. ?•—Yes.
And limits the investment to such securities ?— Witness: Have you read section sof the

Act of 1882 ?
Mr. Dargaville.] Yes ; but, notwithstanding that, the section I refer to has not been repealed.

Do you hold that under section 5 of the Act of 1882 you can entirely disregard section 37 of the
Act of 1874, and invest such large sums for any term of years you may think reasonable ?—Yes ; I
can deposit.

I consider that section 37 of the Act of 1874 has not been repealed ?—I will read section sof
" The Public Eevenues Act, 1882 :"—"5. The subsection to the nineteenth section of the said Act
is repealed, and thefollowing shall be read in lieu thereof: The Postmaster-General, the Govern-
ment Insurance Commissioner, the Public Trustee, and the Commissioners of the Public Debts
Sinking Funds, may, subject to the approval of the Colonial Treasurer, and any Act or Acts to the
contrary notwithstanding, invest any part of the balances of their respective accounts in such
securities as the Governor in Council from time to time declares to be securities in which such
moneys may be invested, and mayfrom time to time sell and convert into money any such securities,
and cause such money, together with any interest accruing thereon, to be paid into the account to
which such securities belong." That is absolutely a repeal as respects the limitation.

I say, No. It gives extendedpowers, but does not repeal clause 37 of the Act of 1874. Well,
notwithstanding that clause of the Act of 1874, you hold you may invest these sums of a quarter
of a million or so for any period of years in the way you have stated with the consent of the
Treasurer ?—Yes.

And without an Order in Council ?—Yes.
And you meanto continue to do so, unless Parliament interposes some check, should occasion

arise ?—I do not see any reason why I should not. The money would have lain in the bank at
3 per cent, if I could not get investment otherwise, and that would have been eaieidal injurious to the
interests of the department.

I-SHppese-yea-kftow that-^¥ith-tlio-nee669it46e-9J-aHy-depft¥teeHt-ei-'-69i!pepati6a I suppose you know
that it is in proportion to the necessities of any banks, corporations, or individuals they are always
prepared to give a kigbes high rate of interest for money?—I do not know. lam sure the rate of
interest is generally governedby the demand for money«.in the market.

Have you heard the axiom, "The higher the rate of interest the worse the security"?—Yes;
it is a common axiom.

If the bank had been prepared to give you 7 or 8 per cent, for this money, I presume, according
to your view of the matter, you would have been all the readier to invest it ?—I do notknow. You
are supposing circumstancesthat have no existence, and then asking me what I should do in them.

That is a higher rate than you could get in other investments?—Yes.
Did it ever occur to your mind to consider the desirability of the investment on the ground of

safety and convenience to the department ?—I thought it was a good, safe, and sound iaveetaeHtj
transaction, otherwise I should never have thought of making it.

You now hold yourself at liberty to repeat an operation of that kind should circumstances
arise ?—lf similar circumstances existedI should say it wouldbe a wise course to follow.

Mr. Driver.] When were you appointed Commissioner?—ln February, 1879.
Has this mode of making deposits with the Bank of New Zealand been always the custom of

the department ?—lt was the course I found in existence, and I have followed it.
As a matter of fact, although the moneyis lent to the Bank of New Zealand for a term of two

years, can that money be withdrawn at any time?—I believe it can as public money.
Did the idea of making these special deposits originate with you or with the Treasurer ?—

With myself.
Refreshing your memory, was it not earlier in 1879 than you said that you received certain

instructions from the Controller-General ?—I will ascertain the exact date. It was a few months
after my entering the department.*

Mr. Steivard.] Did you invest any other money of the department about the same date ?—I
think not; but I can ascertain. I should have rememberedif it had been an amount of importance.

If you did, will you ascertain the terms and the rate of interest ?—Yes.
Mr. Montgomery.] Can you furnish us copies of the deposit receipts?—Yes.
Were there large deposits of money belonging to your department in any bank at the time

you took office ?—Yes; on the 28thFebruary, 1879, there were £74,000on deposit for six and twelve
—generally twelve—months with theBank of New Zealand.

How long had that been deposited before you took office ?—Since the 15thof February, 1878.
And when did you take office ?—26th February, 1879.
You consider the law gives you power to act as you have done ?—Yes.
Could you have made that deposit in any bank ?—I donot think it would fee have been legal.

lam bound to perform my transactions with the bank of the Government; that is my opinion.
How do you arrive at that opinion ?—There is a specific agreement arrangement connected with

the Bank of New Zealand, ighich necessitates that the Government insurance moneys shall be so
treated.

Mr. Macandreio.] Is the question as to how, and to whom, any insurance funds shall be
disposed of decided on your absolute authority ?-—No.

What authority is there?■—It is on mine, as regards dealing with the banking account.
Then, it is deposited in the bank on your authority absolutely ?—Coupled with the concurrency

of the Controller-General; he must consent.

* The datewas April, 1879.
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Then, what distinction do you draw between deposit and investment?—l consider that this

money is open to call in reality as being public funds.
But this is on fixed deposit for a given time, and you say it can bo recalled at any time ?—

As public moneys I think it could.
Then, what does fixed deposit mean? It is a misnomer surely. If the Colonial Bank, say,

had offered an eighth per cent, more, would the deposit have been laid there?—I do not think it
could have been. I would have been willing if it was had it been permissible.

Supposing by an possible contingency any loss should arise in respect of insurance funds
lodged in any bank orbanks, upon whom would that loss devolve ?—I suppose upon the department
or the Government. Idonot know which.

What is the difference between the Government and the Insurance Department ?—The
department's funds are distinct from the other funds of the Government.

Mr. J. G. Wilson.] You said this money was placed at a high rate of interest. You took
into consideration at the time that you could withdraw it, did you?—l did not think about
withdrawal, because I did not think I should want to withdraw it. Wo are accumulating funds
every month, which I have to dispose of to the best advantage, and which in the meantimeI am
putting into deficiencybills, which at that time I could not obtain.

Mr. J. E. Brown.'] Have you any information which would tellus when this system of deposit
with the bank commenced ?—I have mentionedthe date, 15th February, 1878. Here is a memo-
randum which was gi¥ea submitted to the Colonial Treasurer on behalf of the department more
than a year before I joined. (See Appendix.)

Who was the then Treasurer?■—Mr. Larnach.
Then, this system was commenced by Mr. Larnach in 1878?-—lt was approved by him.
Upon the suggestion of Mr. Knight ?—Yes, who was then acting for the Commissioner.
That system has continued ever since ?—Yes.
Did you make this deposit of £225,000 simply because you had no other investment of your

funds ?—Yes; the Government was paying off the Treasury bills at the time.
Then, you could not purchase debentures of other colonies without the consent of two other

persons?—I could not have purchased them; and, besides, the interest on these would have been
too-low.

You could not have purchased them without the consent of the Controller-General or some
one else ?—Without the consent of the Treasurer, and acting under the authority of an Order in
Council.

You did not require an Order in Council or even the consent of the Treasurer to make a
deposit of money in this way?■—l do not think legally it^would be absolutely necessary to have the
consent of the Treasurer; but I would always, if it was a large sum, report the circumstance to
him, and have his concurrence, and ascertain whether he could give me an investment himself.

Do you consider that this, being public money under the Public Eevenues Act, could be
withdrawn from the bank to-morrow if you saw a better investment?—I do not know as to
to-morrow ; I believe it could be withdrawn, but I do not think I should be likely to withdraw it
to-morrow.

What I mean is, have you or the Government power to take that money?—I believe, as
public moneys, it could be withdrawn.

Mr. Macandrew.] Do you say there were no insurance funds on fixed deposit in the Bank of
New Zealand before February, 1878 ?—I think not; but I will submit a list of all deposits made.

Was there a current account ?—Yes.
But there is no differencebetween fixed deposit and open deposit, according to you, inasmuch

as the money can be drawnout at any time?—According to thePublic Eevenues Act I believe the
money could be drawn out without notice.

Practically there is no distinction, then, as far as the bank is concerned?—So it would
appear. At the same time Idonot think it at all likely that such a result would occur. I operate
on the amount current, bid leave the deposits alone.

The Chairman.] In case the money were drawn out it would simply mean a forfeiture of
interest?—Yes.

Do you consider that the entire control of these deposits rests with yourself and the Con-
troller-General?—Yes ; generally.

Mr. Dargaville.] Casting your eye overthe range of similar operations before, have you found
any approximating such magnitude as this in amount, or for any thing like a similar term ?—No;
the largest sum previously was £92,000, and the longest period twelve months, and the rate of
interest, I think, 5-| per cent.

You think, by the Public Eevenues Act, this money could be withdrawn at once without
notice ?—I understand so.

Is that not in case of any doubt arising as to the safety of the deposit ?—I do notknow.
I think you will find that it is in case of any doubt as to the soundness of the institution that

the moneys can be withdrawn? Have you any conception of what the effect would be upon the
bank of the immediate withdrawal of £225,000 ? My object is to arrive at the practicability of the
suggestion that the money may be withdrawn?—I should say it wesld might be disastrous to the
bank. Ido not contemplate withdrawing any of the money.

Therefore, for all practical purposes, this money must be heldnot to bo withdrawable without
notice?—I certainly have nojntention of withdrawing it. I think it is very good interest we gef
for the money.

3
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Mr. Driver.] You say by law you could not do business with any bank?—No.
And you say the immediate withdrawal of £225,000 would be disastrous to the bank ?—I will

modify that term ; I think it might be injurious.
And do you think it would be if the money was simply withdrawn from deposit account, and

placed to current account ?—No ; I think it would not in that case ; it would be simple transfer.
Mr. Montgomery.] What is the date on which you made the last deposit ?—I think the 16th

March.
Mr. Dargaville.] I now propose to refer briefly to the written statement I handed in, and to

give my reasons for making it whieh-I-held-l»a*e-beeH-SHpper4ed-se-ia¥-:b¥-fte-esi6feg-slffte-ei4iie4awr
Erst, "That the Government lent £225,000 of trust funds, over which the Treasurerhas control;
to theBank of New Zealand, without security, for a term of years." That has been establishedby
the evidence submitted, the term of years being two years in this instance. And if a transaction
of this kind couldbo entered into for two years, in the discretionof thepersons who advisedit and
completed it, there is nothing to prevent them entering into it for a much longer term— say,five or
ten years—for a million or two, "in a manner not contemplated by the law." I think that almost
goes without saying, in view of the sections I have read from the various Acts prescribing definitely
the manner in which these funds should bo invested, and that, before any investment is made, an
Order in Council shall have been first obtained. In the present instance no Order in Council
appears to have been obtained, " thereby giving undue advantages to one banking establishment
closely allied with the present Administration." It did not appear to me to be necessary
to call evidence to prove that; it is so self-evident. The alliance of the banking establish-
ment referred to with the present Administration will bo seen in two ways: firstly, from
the correspondence of Mr. Murdoch, the General Manager of the bank, with the Govern-
ment at the time the present agreement between the bank and the Government was made, namely,
1880. Mr. Murdoch speaks there of the disadvantage to the bank of having to hold coin to
provide for any reduction or withdrawal of the Government balances, in what he calls the "very
conceivable event of a hostile Ministry coming into power." That correspondence, and particularly
that expression, coupled with the fact that the present Premier wasonly a short timeago a director
of thebank, and is nowa shareholder in it, as well as being standing counsel for the bank—these
facts, and the well-known anxiety of the bank to keep these honourable gentlemen in office, warranted
me in stating that that banking establishment is closely allied with the present Administration.
Further, " that Parliament has not yet been informed of the transaction." It will be seen, from the
subsection of section 20 of the Act of 1878, that the intention of Parliament was that particu-
lars of these transactions should bo laid before Parliament within thirty days after the opening of
each session. It is thus so evidently the intent and rmaning of the Act that Parliament should be
made aware of these investments, that I hold I was perfectly justified in adding to my statement
" that Parliament has not yet been informedof the transaction," although Parliament has nowbeen
in session two or three months. I have nothing more to add to those words. I hold that an
extraordinary and unprecedented transaction has been entered into with this particular bank,
whereby an undue advantage has been given to the bank, and that Parliament should have been
made aware of the transaction in due course, which has not been done. I say, further, it was done
in a manner not contemplated by the law, but with the concurrence and approval of the Treasurer,
who is, therefore, responsible for it.

Hon. Major Atkinson : I wish to know whether this is all that is preferred against me. I am
ready to meet any and all charges.

The Chairman : Do you intend to make any more charges?
Mr. Dargaville: Not this morning. I have already statedthat this charge should be gone on with,

completed, and exhausted, and that they the others should be taken one at a time. I have repeatedly
stated that that was my intention, otherwise a number of charges would be made without any
possibility whatever, with the time at the disposal of the Committee, of investigating them in time
to report to the House this session, which would be unfair both to myself and the persons charged.
We have been already threo or four weeks

Mr. Driver : Doing nothing.
Mr. Dargaville : Over this business. I thought the present charge the most concise and most

easily to be proved, or disproved, and that it would be inexpedient for me to formulate any more
charges until we have disposed of it.

Mr. Driver : Of course the Committee have no control over you, Mr. Dargaville; but it is quite
competent for the Committee to arrive at a different conclusion from you as to theconduct of the
business. We have already arrived at a decision, and given you notice of it, and it is for the
Committeeto say whether it will take a different course now. For myself, there wouldhave to be
very strong reasons to induce me to consent to accept anything fresh after to-day.

Hon. Major Atkinson : I submit, with all respect, that the position assumed by the honourable
gentlemanis one that, in justiceto the Committee and myself, he has noright to assume. He made
inhis speech definite, distinct charges against me—or rather, I should say, general and sweeping
charges of the most grave character against me. I should say there can be no doubt when he made
that speech that he had what he considered sufficient evidence to support every one of those
charges. The Committeewas appointed to inquire into the fact as to whethercharges hadbeen made,
and to give Mr. Dargaville an opportunity of proving them to be true. If the Committee findcharges have been made, the Committee is directed to report whether they are true or not. Then I
submit that, in justice to myself, I had the right to ask immediately, if I had so pleased, what were
the charges against me. The rule is clear that no man can be brought up charged with grievous
offences without-Snowing what the charges are. I understand that the Committeehave given Mr.
Dargaville ample time—some three weeks—becauseI assume he must have known the grounds of
those charges before they were made—to formulate them, and to prepare his evidence. Now, I ask
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the Committee to inform me whether the case against me is closed by Mr. Dargavrile. I say it is a
gratuitous assumption by Mr. Dargaville that this Committee is not prepared to investigate these
charges. I myself think the House is prepared not to adjourn before these charges are investi-
gated, and, if it is necessary, I hope the Committeewill extendthe timethey have allowed Mr. Dar-
gaville. Now, the question is, can the Committee tell me that this is the only charge against me?
If I am to be brought up day after day, and charged with one charge when another fails, thenI say
that is a position which no person, especially a high officer of State, has any sight to be put in. I
hope the Committee will therefore call upon Mr. Dargavilleto make all the charges he has to make
and to complete his case, and then I will give myreply.

Mr. Montgomery : I submit that, having heard the Treasurer's statements, and Mr. Dargaville
having also heard them, we may ask him what ho is going to say on the matter, which he thinks
will convince the Committee to take his view, and that then we should deliberate.

Mr. Dargaville : I have already stated that I hold it wouldbe most aHiaif-aft4 inconvenient for me
to state a number of charges without any prospect whatever of the Committee beingable to investigate
them, which I hold to be the situation. I shall await the decision of the Committee in this matter,
and, if necessary, the decision of the House in reference to it. There is a clear and distinct imputa-
tion against the Treasurer, and I hold that, without mixing up any other matter with it, it is most
desirable that some definite conclusion in reference to it should be arrived at, which can be done
easily and speedily. I see no reason in what the Treasurer has said, and I could find none in my
own mind for postponing this matter, which is not by any means agreeable to any one concerned,
longer than necessary. I hold that I have substantiated a very grave charge against the Treasurer,
and I shall await the decision of the Committee, and probably of the House, in reference to that
matter.

Son Major Atkinson: The honourable gentleman has—from his own printed speeches, and
from what he has now stated—in reservation several other charges which he intimates he could
make against the Government and against me, and which—it will go forth to the public —he could
not have investigated for want of time. I hold that the whole of the charges should be formulated
at once, and submit, with the utmost respect, that he should be called upon 10 formulate the whole ei
fckem of the charges which hethinkshe is capable of formulating against me, and Iwill undertake—and
I think Ican undertake—thatthis Committeeshall have ample time to investigate every charge he
may make. But I submit it should not go forth to the House and the country that a public man
could be proved guilty of malversation of office if the Committee had only had time to complete the
inquiry. I think I can fairly ask the Committee to protect me from such insinuations going out. I
think the Committee should do it.

Mr. Dargaville : If it will be any satisfaction to tlie Treasurer I will say this: that, in view of
the desirability that the decision of the House should bo arrived at at an early moment in this
matter, I am content to rest, for justification of the general terms in which I have accused that
honourable gentleman, upon the matternowbefore the Committee.

Mr. Driver: In other words, you rest your general charges upon the one before the Com-
mittee.

Mr. Dargaville : I do that, so that the Treasurer may not plead that I hold other charges over
his head, and that I merely covered myself under the pretext of not having time to investigate
them.

Mr. J. E. Brown.] Then, I understand, you rest your charge upon your present case ?—ln the
circumstances, I am willing to do that.

Hon. Major Atkinson : I understand Mr. Dargaville has withdrawn the whole of the charges of
personal dishonour, and that nowhe rests his accusationof political corruption upon the one charge
now before the Committee. That being so, lamperfectlycontent; otherwise I offer thehonourable
gentlemanthe fullest timefor investigation.

Mr. Dargaville : I have withdrawnnothing that I said.
The Chairman : I understand, Mr. Dargaville, you are perfectly willing to accept the decision

of the Committeeon thispoint, without preferring other charges.
Mr. Dargaville : Not of the Committee, because I regard it as a hostile Committee. I await the

decision of the House.
Mr. Montgomery : I think Mr. Dargaville should not say that. This Committee is appointed

by the House.
Mr. Dargaville : lam expressing my opinion. You ask me to submit to the decision of the

Committee, and I give you my reason for not doing so. I propose the House shall deal with it.
The Chairman : I do not think it is fair to charge the Committeewith any injustice or partiality

in the matter.
Mr. Dargaville : I mean that I Biigfcfe ivill not accept your decision as final. Whatever decision

the Committee come to I reserve the right to explain the matter fully in the House.
The Chairman : Will you expect us to go into further charges after deciding this?
Mr. Dargaville : Not necessarily.
Hon. Major Atkinson : Then, Sir, I submit Mr. Dargaville has entirely failed to prove his case :

" That the Government lentthe sum of £225,000of the trust funds." Sir, the Governmenthave lent
no such sum. I ask the special attentionof the Committee to that. Mr. Dargavillehas not madeany
attempt to prove that the Government have done so. Secondly, " That the Treasurerhad controlover
it." As a matter of fact, the honourable gentlemanhas not given the slightest evidence that the
Treasurerhad controloverrfc^as, in fact, the Treasurer had no controloverit. The thirdcount, "That
Parliament has not yetbeen informed of the transaction." Evidence is before the Committee that, by
law, Parliament willnot be informedof thisparticular transactionuntil the annual report of the Go-
vernment Insurance Commissioner is submitted to it, with which the Treasurer or the Treasury has
absolutely nothing whatever to do. The whole of the insurance business is, by law, conducted sepa-
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rately from the Treasury. The Treasurer neversees the accounts, and knows nothing of the funds
any more than the Commissioner chooses to toll him. It is entirely under thecontrol of the Com-
missioner and the Auditor-General, by law. That is all Iwish to say. I ask the Committee, before
I call witnesses, whether the honourablegentlemanhas not absolutely failed to prove any one of the
three allegations he has made. Whatever may be the finding of the Committee in that respect, I
submit, as this is a very grave charge, which ought to have been proved definitely uponevery point —
whatevermay be the decision of the Committee—I shall ask the Committee to examinewitnesses in
order to show how these transactions arose. These transactionsdidnot originate under the present
Government; they have been going on for years, and they are perfectly regular and right. But,
before I call anybody, I ask the Committeeto say whether this charge is proved or not. I submit I
might go away without calling any evidence, because there is none against me. Before anybody
should be calledupon for his defence,you must decide that there is evidencein support of thecharge.
Is there any evidence in support of thischarge ? I submitnot on eitherof the three points : That the
Government lent this money, which is not the fact. No memberof the Government had anything
to do with it; the money is not under the control of the Treasurer in any way. Then, that it has
not been reported to Parliament; that is,because there is properprovision made by which it will be
so reported at the proper time. I ask the decision of the Committee on those three points. It
seems to me perfectly clear that there has been no evidence whatever produced to prove either of
those points. Then I ask the Committee, in order that the public and the House may know the
nature of these transactions, and what goes on in all trust funds, to let me produce evidence to
show how trust funds are dealt with, which is a very serious matter ; and Ihope the Committee will
allow that course.

Mr. Macandrew : Do you wish to call evidence in support of the statement you make now?
Major Atkinson: Certainly.
Mr. Montgomery : Why not call your witnesses?
Major Atkinson: Surely the onus of proof is on the person who makes the charge. I cannot

well prove a negative. If on those threepoints a prima facia case had been shown, then I submit
the Committee would have been .entitled to call on me for my defence.

Mr. Steward : You contend that this is a grand jury, and you ask it to say there is no primd
facie case, and to return "No bill." Now, it appears to me, we are not exactly in that position.
We have heard the evidence on one side, and it is not for us, I think, to say we will dismiss the
matter on the ground that there is no pvima facie case, but that we shall hear the whole and then
come to an opinion on it.

Mr. Dargaville : It is my contention that this moneyhas been lent in a manner not contem-
plated by the law, and I have shown that the Treasurer was a party to that, because he was
cognizant of it, approved of and consented to it. I entirely dispute Mr. Luckie's interpretation of
his powers and duties, in that I hold this is an investment of money contemplated under the Act
I have quoted from, which requires that an Order in Council should be obtained antecedent to it,
where securities should be held, and that these securities should be inspected by the officers
appointed by law to inspect them; also that a return of the securities should be laidbefore Parlia-
ment within thirty days of the opening of the session. These are the points where I differ from the
honourable gentleman. My contention is that these things were not done in accordance with the
law which surrounds such large transactions in trust funds with special safeguards. I say that in
this instance these special provisions of the law have been disregarded, money lent in enormous
sums in a manner not contemplatedby the law, and that the Treasurer has been a party to it.

Major Atkinson: The honourable gentleman's opinion is so-and-so. He calls witnesses to
prove his case, which-fails absolutely. Then, I submit, it is not a question of his opinion or my
opinion. The question is, Was this money under the control of the Treasurer? I submit he has

..given no'evidence to prove that. Was the moneylent by the Government, and ought it to have
been reported to Parliament ? His own witness shows not. This being the charge, I submit the
Committee ought to say whether they call upon me for any defence at all. Then, after they have
decided that, I am going to ask to call witnesses to prove how this system arose, and I shall show
that larger sums Leva been deposited in the bank under a previous Government—under the Govern-
ment of Sir George Grey. I will prove thatby evidence, and the way the whole thing arose. But
-that is quite apart from this question now, for I contend thatnone of the charges made against me
have been proved.

Mr. Dargaville : I submit that the evidence of Mr. Luckie and Mr. Knight, as to matters of
fact, entirely corroborates my statements. As to Mr. Luckie's evidence respecting his powers under
the law, I submit that must be taken by the Committee as his opinion, not as evidence of fact. I
stated, the law clearly, and when Mr. Luckie says that what was done was in accordance with the
Act, he merelygives that as his opinion. I contend it was not in accordance with law. I respect-
fully submit also, in reply to what the Treasurer has just said, that whatevermistakes may have
been committedby the honourable gentleman's predecessors in office has nothing whatever to do
-with the much larger matter nowbefore us. This matter must be determinedupon its own merits.

Thursday, 80th August, 1883.
Mr. W. Geay, examined.

lion. Major Atkinson.} 3£ou are Secretary of the Post Office and Telegraph Department?—Yes.
Has any money of the department been placed on fixed deposit in the Bank of New Zealand

since you have beeir Secretary?—Yes.
When was thefirst deposit ?—ln 1878.
Who was then Premier and Postmaster-General? —Sir George Grey was Premier, and Mr,

Fisher was Postmaster-General.
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Have you continued to make fixed deposits since then ?—Yes; up to 1880.
Is the Colonial Treasurer's approval necessary before you make these deposits?—No.
How much had your department on fixed deposit on the 25th March, 1879?—£120,000, I

think.
And howmuch on the 30th September, 1879?—£Bo,ooo.
Why did you place the money on fixed deposit?—There was no other outlet for investing the

money.
Would it have been in the interest of the Bank of New Zealand to have left the money in

current account instead of placing it on fixed deposit ?— Yes, undoubtedly.
Why?—Because the Government only received at therate of 3per cent, on its currentbalances,

and when the money was placedon fixed deposit 5-J- and 6 per cent was paid by the bank.
Then the deposits were made in the interest of the department?—Yes.
Mr. Dargaville.] What was thelongest term forwhich money was lodged in that way?—Twelve

months.
Are you one of the gentlemen who have the custody of these moneys and the control of them ?

—No;I am not one of the Trust Fund Commissioners.
You can give no opinionor evidence as to why they did this?—The fixed deposits on behalf of

the Post Office were made on the authority of the Postmaster-General. These deposits were made
entirely outside the authority of the Trust Fund Commissioners, and in the interest of the depart-
ment by thePostmaster-General of the day.

You are not awareof any deposit having been made at any time for such a long period as two
years?—No.

This £120,000, was that in one amount?—No; in several. ■
Extending over a considerableperiod?—About eighteen months.
This £120,000 was the highest aggregateamount at any one time ?—Yes.
You had your answer ready to that question. I presume you had an intimation from the

Treasurer that you would be examined on this particular subject ?—I had an intimation from the
Colonial Treasurer that I would be examined on the subject of fixed deposits, and therefore I came
prepared with those figures.

Then you are virtually, so far as these moneys are concerned, a subordinate officer to the
Trust Commissioner?—No ; to the Postmaster-General.

And you can give no explanation of the reason which induced him to invest these moneys in
that way?—Yes. The Treasury had no securities the Post Office could buy with its surplus
cash, and therewas no other outlet for the money. It was then decided it would be far better to
place the surplus on fixed deposit than to leave it in current account, because of the difference in
the rate of interest.

Were there no mortgages available ?—The Post Office is not permitted to lend on mortgage.
Are you not permitted to lend money, with the approval of the Treasurer or under an Order in

Council, on good security ?—Since 1882 we are ; but prior to that date there was no such approval
required.

Not under " The Public Revenues Act, 1878" ?—No. Under that Act the Postmaster-General
could invest in such security as he thought fit without any reference to the Treasurer, but with the
authority of the Governor in Council.

Mr. Luckie, further examined.
The Chairman.] You wererequired to produce certain documents to the Committee; will you

produce them ?—Yes (see Appendix). Then I was to ascertain at what date the Controller and
Auditor-General handed mo over the deposit receipts referred to. It was on the sth April, 1879.- Mr. Dargaville.] This manuscript of Mr. Luckie's evidence has only just been put in my hand.
I have not had time to read it, but it is very clearly in my mind that Mr. Luckie stated yesterday

-in part of his evidence that he acted on the presumption that those moneys, in terms of the bank's
agreement, could not have been deposited with any other bank, or could not have been distributed
amongst the other banks for safety. I ask him, was I right in that?—Yes.

I think Mr. Luckie also stated that ho acted upon theconviction or impression that the moneys
WSre withdrawable at any time from the bank. Is that so ?—Yes ;on forfeiture of interest.

I understood him to say that he believed that the Public Revenues Act, or one of the Acts,
provided that thesemoneys might be withdrawn from thebank on demand?—I believe so.

At the time the money was so invested, were you under that impression? - Yes.
Now, Mr. Chairman, I undertaketo show that Mr. Luckie was entirely wrongin both impres-

sions. I have before mo the agreementbetween the bank and the Government. It will be found
in the Appendix to the Journals of the House of Eepresentatives, 1880. The secondclause of that
agreementprovides: " All moneys paid to the Government shall, subject to the terms of this agree-
ment, be deposited with the bank : Provided (1) that whenever thebalance at credit of the Public
Account or the New Zealand Public Account, either alone or taken together, shall exceed three
hundred thousand pounds, the Treasury shall at any time bo at liberty to invest such excess in
interest-bearing securities, or in fixed deposit with any bank; and (2), further, that the Treasury
shall have the like powers of investment in respect of all or any part of the moneys at credit of
the Eeoeiver-General's Deposit Account, the Post Office Account, the Government Insurance
Account, the Public Trustee's Account, or other special accounts of the Government." I submit
that there can be no other interpretation put upon that but that the Insurance Account moneys
may be deposited with any other bank or banks. I also venture to say that there is no provisionin
" The Public Revenues Act, 1878," authorizing the withdrawal, as stated, of any money lodged in
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the bank for a fixed period before the time is up. The 34th clause of that agreement says,
" Nothing in this agreementshall be deemed to prejudice anyright or power which the Governor in
Council or any Commissioners appointed by him may have under the fifty-third section of ' The
Public Revenues Act, 1878.'" The 53rd section of " The Public Revenues Act, 1878," refers only
to moneys in the UnitedKingdom. I have perused all the Acts carefully, and I assert, without fear
of being contradicted, that there is no provision for the withdrawal of these moneys on demand,
and that the terms of the contracts made with thebank respecting these loans very clearly prohibit
such withdrawal. Therefore I assert that the opinion that Mr. Luckie has given—firstly, as to his
inability legally to invest these moneys in any other bank but one; and, secondly, as to his ability
to withdraw the moneyson demand at any timefrom the bank—these opinions were based on an
entire misapprehension of the state of the law, and in ignorance of the terms of this agreement
made with the bank. Iwish to place this on record before proceeding any further. Further, I may
say that I have asked a gentleman who has some experience in these matters (Mr. Larnach) to
be present here this morning. He was at one time Colonial Treasurer, and was a bank manager
for some years. I wish to place his evidence on record for the purpose of showing that this
transaction could not in the ordinary sense of the term be regarded as a deposit in the bank, but as
a loan and an investment of moneysfor a term in every sense of those terms.

Hon. Major Atkinson: Idonot propose to raise any objection to this, but merely wish to point
out for what it maybe worth that Mr. Dargaville's case closed yesterday, and now he wishes to
produce what he thinks is evidence to discredit that given by his principal witness. I wish that to
be placed on record.

Mr. Dargaville: Mr. Hardcastle, our local Resident Magistrate, tried a cercain case recently,
and refused to hear certain witnesses when the plaintiff's case was closed. Consequently a gross
miscarriage of justice occurred. The Treasurer,apparently, is nowdesirous of acting like Mr. Hard-
castle.

Hon. Major Atkinson: I said distinctly that I raised no objection whatever, but I merely wished
to point out the wayMr. Dargaville is catching at straws.

Mr. Macandrciv.} Did Mr. Luckie examine the records of the department prior to 1878 as to
therespective dates of fixed deposits in the bank?—Yes. At least, I have instructed the clerk in
charge to do it, and he made out the list produced.

That list contains the whole?—Yes.
Mr. Macandreio.] Do I understand that during the thirteen years this department has been in

existence,collecting money, theyhave never had afixed deposit in the bank until 1878?—That is the
information I have from my officers. There is no record of any deposit receipt prior to that date.

Mr. Driver.] My recollection of it is that the department dragged on very slowly for a number
of years, and until about that time moneys did not begin to accumulate?—In June, 1878, the accu-
mulated fund was £292,000, and before that the funds were chiefly absorbed in Treasury and
deficiencybills.

llou,. Major Atkinson.] Were you summoned as a witness, Mr. Luckie, before to-day ?—Yes;
I attended yesterday on summons.

Were you in attendance the day before ?—I was.
At whose request did you come here ?—Mr. Dargaville met me on theprevious night and asked

me if I could be present as he wished me to attend as a witness. I wrote to Mr. Mercer, the clerk
of the Committee, telling him I would be in the Under-Secretary's room, where I waited for an
hour and a half.

Eoady to give evidence at the request of Mr. Dargaville ?—Yes.
What is your position ?—I am Government Insurance Commissioner.
When were you appointed?—Onthe 26th February, 1879.
Who was then Prime Minister?—Sir George Grey.
Were any insurance moneys at the Bank of New Zealand on fixed deposit when you took

office ?—Yes; I have given a list.
How much?-On the 28th February, 1879, there was £74,000. I was appointed on the 26th.
Did you continue to make fixed deposits from timeto time?—Yes.
Did you consider it necessary under the law to consult the Minister of the day wheneveryou

made a fixed deposit ?—No ; I didnot.
What was the date of the first deposit made by the department?—l9th February, 1878.
What was the amount you had on fixed deposit on the 25th March, 1879?—£89,000.
What was the amount on the 30th September, 1879?—£70,000.
Y^ith reference to the sum of £225,000 now on deposit at the Bank of New Zealand, did you

consult me before you made it ?—Yes; I came to see you.
Why ?—Because I wanted to see whether I could get any advice from you withrespect to other

investments—Treasury bills and the like.
Were you compelledby law to get my approval before you made this deposit ?—Not according

to the law, as Iread it, and as I have acted upon it.
If I had declined to give you my advice on the question, whatwould you have done?—lf I had

no other means of investing the moneys I should have put it in the bank on deposit, inasmuch as
I should have lost 3 per cent., at any rate, if I had allowedit to remain on accountcurrent; and the
interestsof the office demanded that I should secure abetter rate than that.

That is to say, if you have authority by law to deposit the money, it was done without my
assent ?—Provided Ihad %e concurrence of the Controller and Auditor-General, who must counter-
sign any cheque with me before it becomes a valid transaction.

You can make a deposit of this sort without previously consulting the Treasurer?—Yes.
Has the Treasurer anything to do with the custody of insurance moneys or with the accounts ?

—None whatever.
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Has the Treasurer anything to do with the disbursement of insurance moneys?—No.
How often are your accounts published?—Yearly.
In these accounts do you show what moneyis on fixed deposit?—Yes.
Are you required by law to report to Parliament, except yearly, what money you have on

fixed deposit ?—No.
Have you evermade any such report ?—No; never, other than yearly.
Mr. Dargavible.] Can you refer to any Act or provision of the law which enables you to make

these fixed deposits ?—I stated yesterday very fully that I had been advised, and the Controller-
General was of a similar opinion, as shown by his acts, that these moneys put in the bank on
deposit were not investments or securities under the Act referred to. That action of the Controller-
General was, I believe—if my memory serves me rightly—arrived at after consultation with and
after an opinion had been obtained from the Law Officer. I can simply repeat thatI consider these
moneys on deposit account not investments, and I amborne out by the Controller-General and the
practice of the office.

Can you refer the Committee to any law enabling you to do this?—I think it is a case where
it should be pointed out that the law prevents it. Section 10 of " The Public Eevenues Act, 1878,"
says, " 10. Moneys received under any Act for the time being in force relating to the Government
Insurance and Annuities, together with all interest accruing from such moneys, shall be deemed to
be public moneys within the meaning of this Act, and shall, anything in any such first-mentioned
Act notwithstanding, be kept in a separate account at the bank, called 'The Government Insurance
Account,' which shall be operated on only by cheque of the Government Insurance Commissioner,
countersigned by the Controller and Auditor-General." That clearly limits the operation and the
account.

I agreewith you that it limits it; but where we differ is as to whether it warrants the extension
of it ?—I will use the term " defines " instead of " limits."

Very well; I understand you rely, for your power of placing this money in thebank for a period
of years, on section 10 of " The Public Eevenues Act, 1878" ?—Yes; partly that.

Is it partly that, and partly anything else ?—Yes; it is on that.
On that section of the Act solely ?—Yes; and what has been the practice, based, as I under-

stand, upon the advice of the Law Officer, received by the Controller-General at the time that the
change took place.

Do I understand you to say distinctly that the Solicitor-General has interpreted section 10 of
that Act in such a manneras to warrant you in lodging these large sums with the bank for aperiod
of years?—l do not know that he has given it for a period of years.

Say for two years?—I do not know for two years.
But you have acted in that direction, have you not ?—Not under the advice of the Solicitor-

General.
On your own interpretation of the law, then?—Yes; fortified by the action of the Controller-

General in handing me back those deposit receipts in the manner I mentioned in my evidence yes-
terday. I considered I was acting for the true interests of the department in the matter.

You have handed in a return of fixed deposits made since the year 1878. That you assume to
be correct ?—Yes.

The average of these operations, I suppose, would be £3,000 or £4,000 each deposit ?—Some-
times I gave £1,000 because I was unwilling to lose the bank interest that could be secured ,for, as
the maximis, I believe the accumulation of small sums to be the basis of good insurance manage-
ment.

And you felt safe in assuming that the practice which theretofore obtained in the department
warranted you in depositing this large sum of £225,000 for two years?—Yes;because, in point of
fact, £13,000 in 1878 was just about on a par with £200,000 in 1883, seeing that the accumulated
funds had grown so large, and that it was found a necessary thing that I should not lose the oppor-
tunity of getting as good interest as I could obtain.

Had you any applications made to you by public bodies or othersabout this time, or shortly
before it, for moneys—I am speaking of the time when this £225,000 transaction occurred; I think
it was in February or March?—Yes; there were a few borough applications. One, in point of fact,
was ready to be granted, if the conditions had been fulfilled, for a sum of £3,000 or £4,000 perhaps.

Would you be prepared to supply the Committee with a statement of applications that came
within your cognizance for three months prior to the 16th March : all the applicationsor inquiries
for loans made to your department that came within your ken during the period of three months
prior to the 16th March?—Yes ; I think they are very little.

Mr. Dargaville : I beg here to record that I entirely dissent from the proposition that the
Treasurer has volunteered at the outset of his remarks, namely, that Mr. Luckie is to be regarded
as my witness or as a witness on my behalf. I say that he is obviously a witness for and on behalf
of the Treasurer. The whole tendency of his evidence goes to justify his own action and the
Treasurer's, and he cannot possibly be held to be my witness therefore.

Mr. Macandrew.] Who is thepolitical head of your department?—The Colonial Treasurer for
the time being.

Do I understand you rightly to say that you do not consider it necessary to consult the Minister
in connection with the deposits you make?—-Yes; practically the moneyhas been continuously placed
on fixed deposit if I could not get deficiency bills.

In point of fact, do you ever lodge any money on fixed deposit without consultation previously
with the Colonial Treasurer?—ln point of fact, from the time I went in that has been done. It was
the practice, as I said yesterday, and I did not consult the Treasurer unless in this way: I con-
sidered myself bound to see whether or not there were Treasury bills which would suit for invest-
ment.
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Who was Commissioner at the time Mr. Larnach was Colonial Treasurer ?—Major Heaphy.
He appears to have consulted the Treasurer in making such deposits ?—That was at the time

it was the impression it was an investment, and was the beginning of the deposit system. "Within
two or three months after I took office it was found and acted upon that it was not an investment

Subsequently Mr. Ballance was Treasurer, and Sir George Grey. Did you make any fixed
deposits during their tenure of office without their knowledge? —Not without their knowledge,
because the Audit reported the state of thebank account to the Treasurer every day.

Did you not, in point of fact, ask Sir George Grey when ho was Treasurer?—No; I do not think
I did. I acted on thepractice I found existing.

All I can say is it seems strange, because Iknow that in Mr. Ballance's time a close eye was
kept on the moneyin the Insurance Department—with what object I cannot tell; but I am bound
to say that never apenny was deposited in the bank without his knowing it ?—There are no records
from him upon the question as to whether or not deficiency bills were available; but there were at
that time no Treasury billsavailable.

Mr. J. E. Brown.] Until a certain period, I understood you to say, these deposits were treated
as investments, and could only be made with the consent, as provided by law, of the Auditor-
General. They were treated in that way from the beginning—treated as securities?—Yes.

And bylaw they require the Auditor-General's consent?—Yes; by law it now requires his
counter-signature to obtainmoneys for such a transaction.

Mr. Macandrew.] In respect to all other investments, have you to get the authority of the
Minister?—Yes; according to clause 5 of "The Public Eevenues Act, 1882."

The Chairman.] Were any of these deposits made in Mr. Ballance's administration ?—Yes.
Did you consult him about these deposits ?—No ; I followed the current practice.
Had he any particular knowledge other than the general knowledge of the statement supplied

to the Treasury ?— He would be supplied with the account which the bank and the Audit furnished
to the Treasury. He knew every day the balance on the Treasury account and the different trust
accounts.

Did he ever personally interfere in the matter ?—No.
You never deemed it necessary to apply to him before making a deposit ?—No. It was a con-

tinuous practice, carried on because it was the only way in which, in the absence of statutory
investments, I could dispose of the money of the department.

Mr. J. E. Brown.] Would you have made this deposit of £225,000 if you could have bought
deficiency or Treasury bills?—No; Ido not think I should. Treasury bills were not available,and
I did not know what otherwise to do with the money.

Mr. Montgomery.] You stated that you believed the deposit could only be made with theBank
of New Zealand, the fixed deposit?—Yes.

How did you arrive at that opinion ?—I understood there was a binding arrangementby which
I could only deposit at the GovernmentBank.

Did you consult the Treasurer as to whether you could deposit with any other bank than one ?
—I did speak about it.

To the Treasurer?—Yes.
What was his reply?—l do not remember exactly, but I think wefound that it could notbe

legally done. I suggested, I believe, that we might give something to the Colonial Bank, but that
fell through. Idonot remember how.

And you got that opinion from the Treasurer?—l think so.
Did you get it from the Auditor-General ? —No ; I did not discuss it with the Auditor-General.
Did you say you conferred with the Treasurer as to the deposit of this large sum of £225,000,

and he approved of it ?—lt was not necessary to have his approval. I desired it for the sake of the
interest, and he thought it would be a judicious deposit.

Mr. Driver.] Are you not obliged by law to make your deposits in what may be termed the
Government bank ?—That is what I understood should bo done, and I have always acted on that
belief.

And if you made deposits in any other than a Government bank, you would subject yourself to
prosecution probably, and be liable for the whole amount in case of loss?-- I have never gone into
the question because I thought it a settled matter that the Government bank was the one in which
I was to make my deposits.

Mr. Macandrew.] Then, it appears, notwithstanding your belief that the law requires you to
invest in the one bank, you proposed investing in the Colonial Bank ?—lf it were practicable.

Mr. Dargaville.] Youhave said two or three times that the Law Officers of the Crown have
given an opinion that this was not an investment, and the bank must not be regarded as security
under a certain section of the Public Revenues Act. Was that opinion given in writing ?—I do not
know. I cannot tell whether or not the Controller-General got the opinion in writing. I did not
see it, but that was what he told me.

But, in dealing with such a large sum asthis—nearly a quarter of a million of money—did it not
occur to you that you should take care and have an opinion in writing to warrant you in under-
taking it, especially as you knew that at one time previously it was held to be an investment, and
that the terms of the Act should have been complied with ?—I did not think it necessary, on two
accounts : first, that the practice had been what I say; secondly, if I had not transferred the money
from current account to deposit, it would have been equivalent to a loss of 3 per cent, interest.

You say it was not an investment, and you hold you were fortified by some supposed opinion
given by the Solicitor-Gen%ral, but which you have never seen?—I cannot recall to my memory
that I have seen, it; but I am sure the Controller-General, when he handed meback the receipt
on the sth April, 1879, was acting under legal advice.

The Controller-General told you that this was not a legal investment in terms of the Act, nor
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were the receipts of the bank securities in the sense contemplated?—Yes; it was not an investment,
and thereceipts were not securities under the Act.

Hon. Major Atkinson : I propose to put in a copy of the opinion of the Attorney-General and
Solicitor-General on that.

Thubsday, 30th August, 1883.
Mr. Gavin, examined.

Hon. Major Atkinson.] What are your offices ?—Secretary to the Treasury, Paymaster-General,
and Receiver-General; also Secretary to the Commissioners of the Public Debts Sinking Funds.

When wereyou appointed Secretary to the Treasury?—ln December, 187S.
Who was Premier then?—Sir George Grey.
Can you tell me whether the Sinking Fund Commissioners have had any money on fixed

deposit since, say, 1877?—Yes.
What amount?—About £75,000 was the maximum amount in the aggregate.
Why did they make this investment ?—They had some sinking funds to realize in about six

months from the time the matter was considered; and they thought it better to place the money in
the bank on fixed deposit at interest rather than allow it to remain unproductive.

That is to say, it was done in the interest of the department ?—Yes.
What amount was there on deposit on the 25th March, 1879?—About £45,000 on account of

the sinking funds.
Can you tell me the total amount on fixed deposit on the 25th March, 1879?—£262,000

altogether.
Can you tellme the total amount on the 30th September, 1879'?—£150,000.
Has the Treasury anything to do with the accounts of the Insurance Department ?—Nothing

whatever.
Or with the money of the Insurance Department ?—Nothing whatever.
The Treasury Department is in no way responsible for them?—No.
In fact, we never see them until they are published ?—That is so.
Mr. Bargaville.] The amountsyou name as being on deposit on the two dates include the whole

of the trust funds, I presume ?—Yes.
Post Office, Insurance, Public Trustee, and Commissioners of Sinking Fund?—Yes.
What has been the longest term it has been customary to put money on fixed deposit ?—Six to

twelve months. I believe the longest term relates to the money recently invested.
That is, two years ?—Yes.
That, then, as far as your experience goes, is unprecedented?—lt has never occurred before.
You say the Treasury had nothingto do with the Insurance Department funds ?—I do.
Do you mean by that that the Treasurer has nothing to do with the investment of Insurance

funds ?—I cannot say what the Treasurer may have had to do with it. I say the Treasury Depart-
ment had nothing to do with it.

That is to say, you and your subordinate officers had nothing to do with it ?—Yes.
You are aware of the provisions of the Public Revenues Act ?—Yes.
You are aware that it imposes certain duties on the Treasurer in respect to the funds of the

Insurance Department ?— Yes. I quite understand that the Treasurer has to do with the invest-
ment of trust funds in this way : subject to his approval, they are to be invested in such securities
as the Governor, by Order in Council, declares to be securities in which such funds may be invested.

Mr. Macandreiv.] What is the amount on fixed deposit in respect to all departments at the
present moment?—£225,000. There is nothing at present on deposit in connection with any other
department than the Insurance Department.

Mr. Dargaville.] You have had, I presume, a good deal of financial experience in your posi-
tion?—I have been twenty-three years in the Treasury. My experiencehas thereforebeen gathered
chiefly there.

In that wide experience, have you everknown it to be customary with any bank to receive what
are ordinarily termed deposits for a longer period than one year?—My experiencenot lying outside
the Treasury, I think I have already answered the question.

I am not speaking of you officially but as a man of general observation and information, who
generally notices what is going on in connection with Government operations and other matters of
public concern, and I ask you if you know of a singlecase in which abank has takena fixed deposit
for a longer period than twelve months ?—ln connection with any Government department ?

Yes?—No, certainly not; except in thisparticular case.
What period, in your opinion, would make a distinction between a deposit in the bank and an

investment of money by way of loan to the bank ? What period would make the distinction; that
is to say, if you lodged moneyin the bank for five years, would you still call that a deposit, or would
it, in your opinion, become an " investment"of the money?—l do not see any distinction.

Then, you regard deposits as investments ?—I do not.
Then, any lodgment of money in the bank, no matter for how long a period, would you call a

"deposit" in the ordinary sense?—I would; but, as I have said, I have never known a case of
money being deposited for any^uch long period as two years, except the case in question.

The Chairman.] ■Jn all cases of deposit, is it understood that the money can be withdrawn at
any time on forfeiture of interest?—I believe that is customary with banks.

What would you consider the difference in a deposit for five years with a bank, and an ordi-
nary investment ?—This difference : that the deposit could be withdrawn with the concurrenceof the
bank at any time.■ 4
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Mr. Driver.] Not without the concurrence of the bank?—I should think not; I should think

thatmoney deposited for afixed term would be of the nature of a contract, and that you would
want the concurrence of the bank to withdrawit.

You takeit that for thefirst year it cannot bewithdrawn without the concurrence of thebank ?
—I should say not until theperiod had expired.

Then, I understand you to say, it could not bo ■withdrawn?—Not without the concurrence of
the bank.

Mr. J. E. Brown.] According to the Public Eevenues Act, is not all Government money in the
bank, whether on deposit or not, public money, subject to be withdrawn at any time, whether the
bank may consent, or not ?—I should think the money could not be withdrawn until the expiration
of the six months' notice to terminate the agreement with the bank.

Are you aware that the Public Eevenues Act makes all Government money public money,
which can be operated upon at any time?—I should think not. All Government moneys could not
be withdrawn except by endingthe agreement, which requires six months' notice.

Please look at these deposit receipts, and tell us whether they are not receipts of transfers from
one account to another—from an account bearing interest at 3 per cent, to one bearing 6 per cent. ?
—That is so. The money is taken from one account and placed in another at the bank; but it still
remains at credit of the department, and can be operated upon by the Insurance Commissioner
and the Controller-General at theexpiration of term just the same as any ordinary account.

And drawn out by cheque to-morrow?—Yes ; the bank consenting.
You observe that this receipt is for a voucher, not to an individual ?■—It is not customary to

namein deposit receipts thepersons in whose favour they are drawn.
This is simply a transfer from an arrangementbearing 3 per cent, to an arrangement bearing

6 per cent ?—Yes.
Mr. Dargaville.] Do you say that the money might be withdrawn at any time by cheque ?—

With the consent of thebank.
Mr. Macandrew.] I understand you to say that fixed deposits with the bank can be with-

drawn on six months' notice from the Government ?—The Government account can be withdrawn
at six months' notice. Deposits would be subject to special arrangements made with thebank.

If the bank chose to insist that the deposit should remain the fixed time, could it be with-
drawn in that case?—That would be a legal question. lam not competent to answer it.

Mr. Montgomery.] In your opinion, could that money mentioned in that agreement be with-
drawn within twenty-four months of the date mentionedthere if the bank would not consent ?—I
believe there has been a legal opinion given that it could be withdrawn.

Do you believe this is a contract ?—I believe these fixed deposit receipts are of the nature of a
contract.

Do you believe, or doyou not, that thebank canrefuse to pay any of that money until the end
of the term?—That is a legal question.

But, upon the face of it, this is a contract, you think ?—Yes; it is a contract.

Statement, put in by Mr. Gavin, showing the Moneys standing in fixed Deposits with the Bank
of New Zealand on the 25th March and 30th September, 1879, respectively, on behalf of the
under-mentioned Departments :—

25th March, 1879. 30th September, 1879.
& s. d. £ s. d.

Post Office ... ... ... ... 120,000 0 0 80,000 0 0
Government Insurance Department ... 89,000 0 0 70,000 0 0
Commissioners of Public Debts Sinking Funds 44,953 11 6
Public Trust Office ... ... ... 9,000 0 0

Totals ... ... ... £262,953 11 6 £150,000 0 0
Jambs C. Gavin,

Treasury, Wellington, 28th August, 1883. Secretary to the Treasury.

Hon. Major Atkinson.] Sir, I would like nowto point out to the Committee that the charge is
that the Government " lent the sum of £225,000 of trust funds, overwhich theTreasurer had control,
to the Bank of New Zealand, without security, for a term of years, in a manner not contemplated by
the law." Sir, I have shown by the statement of Mr. Luckie that the Government had no control
whatever over this money; the Treasurer had no control overthis money; the Government did
not lend the money ;but the Commissioner depositednot lent it any more than moneys ea-depeeit
in theBank are lent. But, to make it still clearer, as this is only the opinionof the Commissioner—
who has, however, had the control of these funds for years, and has operated on them by cheques
countersigned by the Controller and Auditor-General—l put in the opinion of the Solicitor-
General to show how far the Treasurer has control over the funds of the Insurance De-
partment. I will read it (see Appendix 8., No. 2). I would state that since I have
been at the Treasury that is the principle upon which I have acted. I have had no
doubt about the law all through, and in any communication with the Commissioner I have
always told him that tlte responsibility in these matters rests upon him with regard to fixed
deposits, because they are nothing but a change in the accounts—they are cimply really a sub-
account undeT the general account. And in further proof of that I will put in the opinion of the
Solicitor-General, also ascertained since this case arose, with a view of making it quite clear, but
upon which the office has acted for years, ever since Sir George Grey was in office. I will read
an opinion givenby Mr. Stout, the Attorney-General, and Mr. Eeid, the Solicitor-General, in April
1878 or 1879, that these moneysfixed deposits are not securities under the Public Eevenues Act, but,
being public moneys in the Government Bank, they are liable to be dealtwith as public moneys.There seems to be no doubt abeat that by law that is so. Here is that opinion (see Appendix B.'
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No. 1.) I have shown that the Government have not lent the money—that it remains in thebank of
the Government, and is liable to theprovisions of the Public Eevenues Act. Andin this connection I
may say, here arose the difficulty of making deposits in other banks, because, had the Insurance
Commissioner and the Auditor-General signed acheque to withdraw moneysfrom thebank authorized
by the Governor and placed it in another bank, they would, I think, have been personally liable,
because public moneys would have been lodged in a bank in which there was no authority to lodge
it. The question of the bank agreementhas nothing whatever to do with it the question. That dees
agreement can not affect the law in any ietmway or shape. Skat It merely authorizes the Treasurer,
if the law is-ee-aad-se permits, to make deposits, as far as the bank is concerned, without question.
That is to say, if the lawwill permit us we can takeit the money and invest it without thebank being
able to objectisg. The object was to leave the Treasuryer perfectly free to to act upon thepublic
account when the deposits reach a certain amount, so as to obtain interest if Parliament authorized
«s Government to make particular investments. T-feat The bank agreement does not and cannot affect
the law. That part with regard to deposits is merely binding on the bank, so the Treasurer is free
to act as Parliament may direct with regard to these investments. Then I come to this question:
The Committeewill have observed that I asked each witness when this system of fixed deposits
began, and what was its object, and in every case, the Committee will observe, the answer was that
they began when Sir George Grey was Premier. Now Ihave made this point clear with this object:
that it is a matter of public notoriety that Sir George Grey would not for a moment think of
doing anything in the interest of the Bank of New Zealand prejudicial to the various trust funds.
Wfeea We find, as a matter of fact, that during his governmentvery large sums were isvested placed
onfixed deposits: at one time the total iaveetmeatofixed deposits in the Bank of New Zealand—onthe
25th March, 1879—amounted to no less a sum than £262,000; and a few days before he went
out of office they still remained at £150,000. And, if further evidence was wanted on the subject,
it would be seen that these funds were drawn out gradually as the Treasury could supply Treasury
or deficiency bills or other securities for their investment. I should wish the Committee
to draw this conclusion from that evidence, that this system of making fixed deposits was started
with the sole object of promoting the interest of the various funds, and subsequent TroaoureteGovern-
ments, believingthat the arrangementwas perfectly right, and was in the interest of the different
funds, and the only wayin which the funds could be fwp&df profitably dealt with, have followedout
that arrangement. So, although it is impossible for me to prove a negative, namely, that it this
deposit of £225,000 was deae made in the interest of the bank, as is asserted feese in this charge,
there is evidence to show that successive Governments have continued this operation; that it was
begun by a Government who are above suspicion with regard to doing anything in the interests of
theBank of New Zealand; and therefore we may safely conclude that these deposits aremade—as
is undoubtedly the case—simply and solely in the interest of the departments concerned. Then I
have shown also by the evidence of the Commissioner (and the Committeemay see it by looking at
the law) that the Commissioner is only directed to makeup his accounts for publication once ayear,
and that, as a matter of fact, when he does make up the accounts these transactions are shown.
If honourable gentlemenwill turn to tae some of the yearly accounts they will see the entry " cash
on deposit." I have shown that during all these years these deposits have been going on the Com-
missioner has never considered, nor has any other department, that they were bound to make a
return of these fixed deposits wbieli—l hold is them to be simply another form of account in the
authorized bank, and not an investment of funds, which they- are directed by the Public Revenues
Act to report to Parliament. Therefore I say that the implied censure, from the fact that it this
transaction has not been reported to Parliament, will not stand for a moment: that everything has
been done in this matter which ought to have been done. I might also say, though this of course is
only a matter of opinion to a certain extent, to explainwhy the authority of the then Treasurer(Mr.
Larnach) was, upon therecommendationof Mr. Knight, givento the investment, so-called, of these
funds, that is to say thefirst fixed deposits made by this department, and the reason no doubt was
that these deposits were then looked upon as investments ; they were treated as Sxei-depesite
securities by the Controller and Auditor-General, and all these fixed deposit receipts were thenkept
in the safe and treated like any other security. The same question appears to have arisen in
November, 1878, as to what they were, and upon that the opinion of Mr. Stout, then Attorney-
General, and of Mr. Eeid was taken as to the question whether they were securities or no!}. They
gave it as their opinion that they were not securities within the Act. I will read their opinion,
which is dated 18th November, 1878 (see Appendix 8., No. 1). The Committee will observe
that that was the opinion of the Attorney-General and Solicitor-General during the Premier-
ship of Sir George Grey. Speaking from memory, I think the whole of these so-called
investments in fixed deposits, except the first Post-office investment, took place after that
opinion was given. I think the Committee will draw the conclusion from that these facts that
tkey fixed deposits were not considered investments by the Government—that they were really
considered, as they are, a change of account in the bank; that they weremade in the interest of the
various trust funds, and for the purposes of obtainingaa-invoßtmont interestwhich could not other-
wise have been obtained; and that, if they had not been so iawsted;deposited, they would have had
to remain in the pablie current account, to the great advantageof the bank, at a very low rate of
interest. I submit the honourable gentleman has entirely failed to prove one particular of his
allegations,and Isubmit, further, that I have succeeded in proving a negative in every case. I have
no further remarks to mak^

Mr. Dargaville : I wist to draw the attention of the Committee to this, in the last opinion
read : " Even whei-e a general power of investment is given, we do not think placing money on fixed
deposit at abank could be termed ' investment.' Such a course could only be taken temporarily
under aproper investment offer."

Major Atkinson : I would merely like to say now thatI should like to offer myself for examina-
tion by Mr. Dargaville or any member of the Committee.

The Chairman : Do you wish to ask the Treasurer any questions, Mr. Dargaville ?
Mr. Dargaville : No, Sir ; Timeo Danaos et dona ferentes !
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APPENDICES.
APPENDIX A.

Return handed in by Mr. D. M. Luckie.
Government Insurance Account—List of Fixed Deposits—Bank of New Zealand.

• Interest, 6 per cent, for first twelvemonths and 5J per cent, for second twelve months, payable half-yearly.

APPENDIX B.
(1.)

Legal Opinions referred to in Evidence by the Hon. Major Atkinson.
We are clearly of opinion that, where an Act specifies a particular mode of investment, there is no
power to go outside its terms.

Even where a general power of investment is given we do not think placing money on fixed
deposit at a bank could be termed " investment." Such a course could only be taken temporarily
until a proper investment offer, and, following the rule adopted by the Chancery division of the
Supreme Court in England, such a power would ordinarilymeanan investment upon Government
orreal securities of an unobjectionable character.

As to the last paragraph of this opinion we must be understood as speaking generally, and with-
outreference to any particular state of facts.

Eobbet Stout.
Crown Law Office, Wellington, 18th November, 1878. W. S. Eeid.

The question upon which an opinion is desired is, " What is the position of money issued out of the
Government Insurance Account, and paid into abank upon fixed deposit ?"

Moneys received under " The Government Insurance and Annuities Act, 1874," are declared by
" The Public Seventies Act, 1878," section 10, to be public moneys, and are liable to be dealt with
under theprovisions of that Act.

The authorityfor investing such moneys is contained in the 37th section of " The Government
Insurance and Annuities Act, 1874," and the sth section of "The Public Eevenues Act, 1882,"
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Date. Number. Term. Rate. Amount.

1878.
.9 Feb.
18 „
7 Mar.

■2 „
-9 „
16 „
.3 April
■7 „
15 „
1 May
7 „
A „
il „
10 „
5 June
1 „

11 „
19 „
9 July

■7 „
16 „
il „
A Aug.
18 „
.1 Sept.
.9 „
2 Oct.
A „
-7 „
!3 „
11 „
11 „
5 Nov.
8 „
■3- „
■9 „
16 „

84,330
84,340
84,357
84,363
84,369
84,379
84,397
84,400
84,605
84,613
84,619
84,631
84,643
84,664
84,668
84,675
84,689
84,404
84,413
84,426
84,443
84,454
84,475
84,494

113,509
113,522
113,701
113,707
113,715
113,717
113,720
113,721
113,725
113,728
113,729
113,734
113,738

Months.
12
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tr
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tt
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tt
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tr

Per cent.
5i

£
7,500
2,000
1,000
1,500
2,000
1,000
2,000
1,000
1,000
1,500
6,000
2,500
1,500
1,000
1,500
1,500
1,000
2,500
1,000
2,000
1,500
1,500
2,000
2,000
1,000
1,500
1,000
2,000
1,500
2,000
1,000
6,000
1,000
1,500
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12 „
18 „

1879.
2 Jan.
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173,608
173,609
173,611
173,643
173,654

24 10,000
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1.—13.

The securities upon which such investments may be made are-indicated in those sections; but
nothing is said about fixed deposits; and indeed, in my opinion, a deposit of money in a bank to be
repaid with interest after a stated period is notan "investment" within the meaning of these pro-
visions.

Fixed deposits in a bank are usually made upon a voucher signed by the person making deposit,
in exchangefor which he gets a receipt from the bank, stating the period of deposit, rate of interest,
&c. Both these documentsmust be looked at and read together, to see what is the actual contract;
but, as in the present case, there is no legal authority for making such a contract, I am of opinion
the moneys so placed on fixed deposit remainpublic moneys, and are liable to be dealt with under
any law affecting them.

Crown Law Office, 27th August, 1883. W. S. Eeid.

(2.)
I understand the questions upon which you wished to be advised are,—

(1.) What control the Treasury has over moneys of the Government Insurance Account;
and

(2.) Whether moneys belonging to such account placed in a bank on fixed deposit are
securities within any law authorizing investment of such moneys.

1. In answer to the first of these questions, the present law affecting the receipt and control of
moneys in the account referred to is to be found in " The Public Revenues Act, 1878."

Section 10of that Act overrides section 36 of "The Government Insurance and Annuities Act,
1874," and declares that moneys received under that Act are "public moneys," to ke kept in a
separate account, and operated on by cheque of the Commissioner, countersigned by the Controller
and Auditor-General.

I am therefore of opinion that, so far as affects the control of these moneys, the Commissioner
is independent of the Treasury, both under section 10 and section 12 of the same Act, and no
Treasury regulations could alter the operation of thesesections. It is only when the Commissioner
requires to invest money under the sth section of "The Public Eevenues Act, 1882," that the
Colonial Treasurer's approval is required to the proposal. In this latter respect the Commissioner
of Government Insurance stands upon the samefooting as the Postmaster-General and the other
functionaries mentionedin the sth section, who are required to obtain a like approvalof investments
proposed by them.

2. In answer to the second question, I think that fixed deposits in a bank of moneys belonging
to the Government Insurance Account arc not securities within the meaning of the 37th section of
" The Government Insurance andAnnuities Act, 1874," or the sth section of "The Public Revenues
Act, 1882."

Crown Law Office, 30th August, 1883. W. S. Reid.

Papbbs handed in by Me. Luckib.
Memoeandum from C. Godfbey Knight to the Hon. the Colonial Teeasueeb.

Government Insurance Department, Wellington, 11th February, 1878.
In consequence of there being no Treasury bills available,the moneys that have accruedfrom the
Ist of January to the credit of the Government Insurance Account have not been invested as
hitherto, and thereis now a sum exceeding £8,000 awaiting investment.

I would propose that, until Treasury bills or other securities specified in section 37 of " The
Government Insurance and Annuities Act, 1874," are available, the moneys from time to time
accruing should be placed on fixed deposit with the Bank of New Zealand at 5-J- per cent., instead
of remaining there at call as at present, and only bearing 3 per cent.—C. GodfreyKnight, pro
Commissioner.—The Hon. the Colonial Treasurer.

Cheque No. 154 for £7,500 handed to Dr. Charles Knight for deposit as above.—(Sd)
T. J. Boyes, 15/2/78.

11/2/78, Approved; (Intd.), W. J. M. L., Colonial Treasurer.
Fixed deposit receipt No. 173609; due 18th January, 1885.

Bank of New Zealand. Deposit receipt. Wellington, 18th January, 1883.— Eeceived from
No. 173609 the sum of ten thousandpounds as a fixed deposit, repayable at the end of twenty-four
(24) months, bearing interest at the rates as indorsed from the date hereof.

£10'000- For the Bank of New Zealand. { ' Manager.
[ , Accountant.

When payment of thisreceipt is required, the receipt must be returned, duly indorsed.
[Indobsement.—Eate of interest for the first twelve months, (6) sixper cent, per annum; for

the last twelve months, (SJ) five and a quarter per cent, per annum. Interest payable half-yearly.]
No. 173608, ten thousand pounds, 18th January, 1883; No. 173611, five thousand pounds, 19th

January, 1883; No. 173643, one hundred thousand pounds, 28th February, 1883; No. 173654, one
hundred thousand pounds, 16th March, 1883.—The above are all repayable at the end of twenty-
four months, and all bear the same indorsement as to interest.

Balances, Government Insurance Account.—January 18, 1883, £7,064 9s. 2d ; January 19
1883, 1,758 15s. 2d.; February 28, 1883, £4,932 10s. 9d.; March 16, 1883, £2,508 6s. 7d.—
E. M. Lane, Accountant.

Authority: George Didsbuey, Government Printer, Wellington.—lBB3.
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